
For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available upon request..  TTY access number is 711 to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

AGENDA 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Regular Meeting 

Circuit Courtroom 
Fluvanna Courts Building 

April 20
th

 2011 

7:00 p.m. 
 

  1-CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 

  2-REPORTS 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

 

   3-PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 (5 minutes each) 

 

  4-CONSENT AGENDA 
TAB F  Minutes of April 6

th
, 2011 – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

TAB G  Robinson Farmer Cox Associates PLLC Invoice – Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

TAB H  FY2011 Four for Life Supplemental Appropriation – Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst 

TAB I  Insurance Reimbursement for Sheriff’s Department – Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst 

 

   5-ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

  None   

 

   6-PUBLIC HEARING  

TAB J   VDOT Secondary Six-Year Plan for Fiscal Years 2011/12 through 2016/17 and the Secondary System  

Construction Budget for Fiscal Year 2011/12[adopt resolution] – Greg Banks, VDOT Secondary 

Programming Coordinator & Karen Kilby, VDOT Program/Investment Management Director 

TAB K  SUP 11:01– Verizon Wireless [A request for a special use permit to allow for a 125 foot wireless  

communications tower with respect to 114.71 acres of Tax Map 30, Section A, Parcel 104.  The 

property is zoned A-1 and is located 0.6 miles east of James Madison Highway (Route 15) at the 

intersection of Georges Mill Road (Route 663) and Courthouse Road (Route 601).  The property is 

located in the Columbia Election District and is within the Rural Residential Planning Area.] – 

Steve Tugwell, Planner 

TAB L  SUP 11:02 – Otis and Pam Collier [A request for a special use permit to operate a small home industry  

with respect to 1.76 acres of Tax Map 12, Section 4, Parcel B1.  The applicant is proposing to 

operate a small business to include automobile refurbishment, small engine repair, and furniture 

repair.  The property is currently zoned A-1 and is located on Hollands Road (Route 630), 

approximately 0.65 miles east of Bybees Church Road (Route 613).  The property is located in the 

Columbia Election District and is within the Rural Residential Planning Area.] – Matt Weaver, 

Planner 

TAB M  ZTA 11:01 – Sidewalks & Setbacks [A request to amend portions of the Fluvanna County Subdivision  

Ordinance to require sidewalks in commercial and industrial areas but allow for a sidewalk 

variation (Sec. 19-8-8 Sidewalks; Sec. 19-8-8.1 Sidewalk Variation).  Amending this ordinance 

will help improve the connectivity within commercial properties and ensure pedestrian access to 

and from adjacent residential areas, schools, commercial areas or open spaces. Updating the 

sidewalk requirements will further bring the subdivision ordinance into conformity with the goals 

of the comprehensive plan for increasing alternative transportation opportunities in Fluvanna 

County.] – Matt Weaver, Planner 

 

   7-PRESENTATIONS (normally not to exceed 10-minute limitation) 

  None 

 

   8-ACTION MATTERS 

TAB Mc  Resolution/ Fair Housing Month April 2011- Karen Reifenberger, Director of Fair Housing,  

Piedmont Housing Alliance 

TAB N  Resolution/Capital Improvements Plan [adoption of] – Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst 



For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available upon request..  TTY access number is 711 to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

TAB O Resolution/FY12 Budget Adoption, Set Tax Rates and Appropriate Funds – Crystal Besecker, Budget  

Analyst 

TAP P  Personal Property Administrative Fee Ordinance Amendment – Crystal Besecker, Budget 

  

  9-OLD BUSINESS 

 

 10-NEW BUSINESS 

 

11-PUBLIC COMMENT #2 (5 minutes each) 

 

 12-CLOSED MEETING 

  None 

 

13-ADJOURN 
 

 

 

 

********** 
Pledge of Allegiance 

I pledge allegiance to the flag  

of the United States of America  

and to the Republic for which it stands,  

one nation, under God, indivisible, 

 with liberty and justice for all. 

 

 

 

********** 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

PUBLIC HEARING RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

1) PURPOSE 

The purpose of a public hearing is to receive testimony from the public on certain resolutions, ordinances or 

amendments prior to taking action.  A hearing is not a dialogue or debate.  Its express purpose is to receive 

additional facts, comments and opinion on  subject items. 

2) SPEAKERS 

 Speakers should approach the lectern so they may be visible and audible to the Board. 

 Each speaker should clearly state his/her name and address. 

 All comments should be directed to the Board. 

 All questions should be directed to the Chairman.  Members of the Board are not expected to respond to 

questions, and response to questions shall be made at the Chairman's discretion.  Speakers are encouraged to 

contact staff regarding unresolved concerns or to receive additional information. 

 Speakers with questions are encouraged to call County staff prior to the public hearing. 

 Speakers should be brief and avoid repetition of previously presented comments. 

        3) ACTION 

At the conclusion of the public hearing on each item, the Chairman will close the public hearing.  The Board will 

proceed with its deliberation and will act on or formally postpone action on such item prior to proceeding to other 

agenda items.  Further public comment after the public hearing has been closed generally will not be permitted. 

 

 

********** 

ORDER 

 

1. It shall be the duty of the Chairman to maintain order and decorum at meetings.  The Chairman shall speak to points of 

order in preference to all other members. 

 

2. In maintaining decorum and propriety of conduct, the Chairman shall not be challenged and no debate shall be allowed 

until after the Chairman declares that order has been restored.  In the event the Board wishes to debate the matter of the 

disorder or the bringing of order; the regular business may be suspended by vote of the Board to discuss the matter. 



For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available upon request..  TTY access number is 711 to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

 

3. No member or citizen shall be allowed to use abusive language, excessive noise, or in any way incite persons to use such 

tactics.  The Chairman and/or the County Administrator shall be the judge of such breaches, however, the Board may 

vote to overrule both. 

 

4. When a person engages in such breaches, the Chairman shall order the person’s removal from the building, or may order 

the person to stand silent, or may, if necessary, order the person removed from the County property.  



 

 

MOTION: I move the regular meeting minutes of the Fluvanna County Board of 

Supervisors for Wednesday, April 6
th

, 2011 be adopted. 
 

 

AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  APRIL 20
th

,  2011 

 

 

SUBJECT: Adoption of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors regular meeting 

minutes. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

TIMING: Routine 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

DISCUSSION:  None 

 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  None 

 

Staff:  Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

Copy:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

Comments: 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, April 6
th

, 2011 

Page 1 

 

 1 

  FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

April 6th, 2011 

2:00 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

Shaun V. Kenney, Vice-Chairman  

    Joe Chesser 

    Donald W. Weaver 

Mozell H. Booker 

Chris S. Fairchild – arrived at 7:00pm 

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

    Fred Payne, County Attorney 

    Renee Hoover, Finance Director 

Darren K. Coffey, Planning Director 

John Robins, Director of Public Works 

    Mary L. Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE 
Chairman Gooch called the meeting of April 6th, 2011, to order at 2:00 p.m., in the Circuit 

Courtroom of the New Courts Building in Palmyra, Virginia; and the Pledge of Allegiance was 

recited, after which, Chairman Gooch called for a moment of silence. 

 

REPORTS 

Mr. Jay Scudder, County Administrator, reported on the following topics: 

 Dooms/Bremo Transmission Line – current right-of-way is 150ft., currently 100ft is cleared.  

Dominion will be clearing the additional 50ft.  Owners can timber their portion of the right-

of-way, if they desire.  Mr. Payne commented regarding to this request,that  in absence of an 

exemption, the Board has a role in reviewing this project. 

 County Health Rankings – Virginia is ranked in the top 20 for health outcomes and ranks 13th 

for health factors. 

 Pet Shelter Grant – awarded grant for $7,500 to equip the Emergency Pet Sheltering Trailer. 

 Virginia Energy Purchasing Governmental Association – new contract rates will save 

members approximately $16 million on an annual basis.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 

Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the first round of public comments. 

The following citizens addressed the Board: 

 Phyllis Montellese, Fork Union District – addressed the Board in reference to bringing in a 

winery to the Farmers Market at Pleasant Grove. 

Board directed staff to look into this request and bring it back before the Board at the next meeting. 

 Bob Peake, Cunningham District – addressed the Board in reference to the budget and 

promoting Economic Development. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the first round of public comments. 

 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, April 6
th

, 2011 

Page 2 

 

 2 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Mr. Weaver noted he was not present at the March 9th, 2011, work session meeting. 

The following items were approved under the consent agenda: 

 MOTION: 

  Mr. Weaver moved to approve the consent agenda, which consisted of: 

 Minutes of February 23rd, 2011. 

 Minutes of March 9th, 2011. 

 Minutes of March 16th, 2011. 

 Execution of Agreement with the VA Dept of Health for FY 11 

Appropriations. 

 FY11 Library supplement for Federal Reimbursement Funding. 

 Approval of Payment to the James River Water Authority for Legal Services. 

 Ag/Forestal District Renewal/AFD 01-002 Adams Creek. 

Mr. Kenney seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Gooch, 

Weaver, Booker, Kenney, and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  Fairchild.    

 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

Renee Hoover, Finance Director, addressed the Board regarding the accounts payable.  

 

MOTION:  

Mr. Weaver moved that the Accounts Payable from February 23, 2011, through 

March 25th, 2011, and payroll for the month of February, 2011, in the amount of 

$1,968,241.55, be ratified. Mr. Kenney seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 

5-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Booker, Kenney, and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  

ABSENT:  Fairchild.    

 
Fund 100 General Fund                $ 1,149,459.76 

Fund 120 Recreation          325.00 

 Fund 202 Federal Grants             5,712.34 

Fund 302 Capital                 216,038.20 

 Fund 401 Debt Service                          45,871.65 

 Fund 502 Utility (Sewer)       7,166.45 

 Fund 505 Fork Union Sanitary District      21,701.15 

Payroll                                 521,967.00 

Total                     $   1,968,241.55 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

None 

 

PRESENTATIONS: 

None 

 

ACTION MATTERS 
Proclamation/April 2011 Celebrating Children’s Month 

Ms. Nicole Shipp, Ms. Shannon Wilson, Mr. Jamie Vest, Ms. Kelly Bowen, and Ms. Karen Hebert 

addressed the Board with a short presentation of what Child Protective Services offers the residents 

in Fluvanna County and requested proclaiming April Celebrating Children’s Month, in recognition of 

Child Abuse Prevention Month and the work done in Fluvanna County. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, April 6
th

, 2011 

Page 3 

 

 3 

MOTION: 

Ms. Booker moved to approve the proclamation [attached hereto] proclaiming the 

month of April 2011, as Celebrating Children Month in Fluvanna County, in 

observation of Child Abuse Prevention Month.  Mr. Chesser seconded.  The motion 

carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Chesser, Booker and Kenney.   

NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  Fairchild.    

 

Resolution/National Crime Victims’ Rights Week 

Ms. Sherri Stader, Director, Victim/Witness Assistance Program, addressed the Board regarding 

bringing awareness to victim’s rights. 

MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved to approve the resolution entitled “National Crime Victims’ 

Rights Week, proclaiming the week of April 10-16, 2011, as Crime Victims’ rights 

Week, and reaffirm the County’s commitment to respect and enforce victims’ rights 

and address their needs during Crime Victims’ Rights Week and through the year. 

Mr. Chesser seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Gooch, 

Weaver, Chesser, Booker and Kenney.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  Fairchild.    

 

Proclamation National Telecommunicator’s Week, April 10-16, 2011 

Lieutenant Aaron Hurd, Sheriff’s Department, addressed the Board, honoring the men and women 

whose diligence and professionalism keep our county and citizens safe. 

MOTION: 

Mr. Chesser moved to approve the proclamation proclaiming the week of April 10-

16, 2011, as “National Telecommunicator’s Week”, and honor the men and women 

whose diligence and professionalism keep our county and citizens safe. Mr. Kenney 

seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Chesser, 

Booker and Kenney.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  Fairchild.    

 

Audit Services Contract 

Ms. Renee Hoover addressed the Board with an Audit Services Contract from Robinson Farmer Cox 

Associates.   

MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved to approve the contract with Robinson Farmer Cox Associates for 

audit services, and authorizes the County Administrator to execute contract pending 

review by County Attorney. Ms. Booker seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote 

of 5-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Chesser, Booker and Kenney.   NAYS:  None.  

ABSENT:  Fairchild.    

 

Fork Union Firehouse Schematic Design 

Mr. John Robins, Director of Public Works, and Mr. Donald Booth, Project Manager for DJG, 

presented the board with the schematic design of the Fork Union Firehouse for review and approval. 

MOTION: 

Ms. Booker moved to approve the schematic design drawings (with the discussed 

modifications) for the Fork Union Firehouse, and authorize the Architect, DJG, Inc, 

of Williamsburg, Virginia to proceed with the Design Development Phase of the 

Project, that is budgeted for $76,217. Mr. Chesser seconded.  The motion carried, 

with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Chesser, Booker and Kenney.   NAYS:  

None.  ABSENT:  Fairchild.    

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, April 6
th

, 2011 

Page 4 

 

 4 

Appointment/Economic Development Commission (EDC) 

MOTION: 

Ms. Chesser moved to appoint Ms. Shelley Murphy to the Economic Development 

Commission, Rivanna position, with a term to begin immediately and to terminate on 

December 31st, 2013. Mr. Weaver seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  

AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Chesser, Booker and Kenney.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  

Fairchild.    

 

OLD BUSINESS 

Legal Matters 

Mr. Weaver questioned when the Board would receive updated information on legal matters in which 

the Board is involved.  Mr. Payne stated that he was prepared to update them today.  Chairman said 

they could do a closed meeting today. 

 

Sign Ordinance  

Mr. Chesser addressed concerns with the current sign ordinance.   Mr. Coffey addressed the 

concerns. 

 

Town of Columbia Task Force 

Mr. Kenney asked what the current status is and when was the first meeting of the Town of Columbia 

Task Force.  Mr. Scudder replied that the first meeting was months ago, and Ms. Pat Groot was 

working on a grant through DHCD with the TJPDC.  Mr. Kenney would like to see the Task Force 

meetings on a more regular basis. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

Ms. Booker mentioned problems with the heating in Social Services Department. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #2 

Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the second round of public comments.   

The following citizens addressed the Board: 

 Claudia Thomas, Columbia District – addressed the Board in reference to the Fork Union 

Firehouse. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the second segment of public comments. 

 

CLOSED MEETING  
MOTION TO ENTER INTO A CLOSED MEETING:  

At 3:45 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors enter 

into a closed meeting, pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.2-3711 of the Code of 

Virginia, 1950, as amended, for the purpose of discussing legal matters. Mr. Kenney 

seconded. The motion carried by a vote of 5-0. AYES: Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, 

Booker and Weaver. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Fairchild 

  

MOTION TO EXIT A CLOSED MEETING & RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION:  

At 4:08 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the closed meeting be adjourned and the Fluvanna 

County Board of Supervisors convene again in open session. Mr. Kenney seconded. 

The motion carried by a vote of 5-0. AYES: Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Booker and 

Weaver. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Fairchild  

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, April 6
th

, 2011 

Page 5 

 

 5 

“BE IT RESOLVED to the best of my knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully 

exempted from open meeting requirements under Section 2.2-3711-A of the Code of Virginia, 

1950, as amended, and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by 

which the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting.” 

 

RECESS 

The Board recessed at 4:10 p.m., to reconvene at 7:00 p.m., for the FY12 Budget Public Hearing. 

 

RECONVENE 

The Board reconvened at 7:00 p.m. 
 

PRESENTATION 

Proposed FY 2012 – 2016 Capital Improvement Plan 

Ms. Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst, provided a PowerPoint presentation on the FY 2012 – 

2016 Capital Improvement Plan.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

FY 2012 – 2016 Capital Improvements Plan 

Chairman Gooch opened the public hearing. 

The following citizens addressed the Board: 
 Sam Patterson, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in opposition to the CIP.  

 Elizabeth Franklin, Columbia District – addressed the Board regarding maintaining the fund 

balance. 
With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the public hearing. 

 

PRESENTATION 

Proposed FY 2012 Real Estate Tax Rate Increase 

Ms. Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst, provided a PowerPoint presentation on the FY 2012 Real 

Estate Tax Rate.  Information was provided on the collection rate and what the proposed increase 

in the Real Property Tax Rate from $.54 to $.57 per $100 of assessed value would entail. 

 

PUBLIC HEARIING 

Proposed FY 2012 Real Estate Tax Rate Increase 

Chairman Gooch opened the public hearing. 

The following citizens addressed the Board: 

 Mr. Brian Thomas, Columbia District – opposed the tax rate increase. 

 Mr. Sam Richardson, Rivanna District – opposed the tax rate increase. 

 Mr. Sam Patterson, Palmyra District – opposed the tax rate increase. 

 Ms. Linda Fletcher, Cunningham District – supports the tax rate increase for the 

children’s future. 

 Mr. Jacques Ruch, Rivanna District – supports the tax rate increase. 

 Mr. Jerome Patchen, Palmyra District, representing Fluvanna Taxpayers Association – 

wanted to clarify that the FTA was in support of the $.54 budget that Mr. Weaver 

proposed.   

 Ms. Norma Hutner, Rivanna District – opposed the tax rate increase. 

 Mr. Minor Eager, Palmyra District – spoke in reference to delinquent taxes and opposed 

the tax rate increase. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, April 6
th

, 2011 

Page 6 

 

 6 

 Ms. Lori Hoffman, Rivanna District – spoke in reference to what the new school will 

offer the County. 

 Ms. Susan Morris, Cunningham District – spoke in reference to the new school, saying 

“think outside the box”. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the public hearing. 

 

PRESENTATION 

Proposed FY 2012 Personal Property Tax Rate Increase 

Ms. Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst, provided a PowerPoint presentation on the FY 2012 

Personal Property Tax Rate.  Information was provided on what the proposed increase in the 

personal property tax rate from $ 3.85 to $ 4.15 per $100 of assessed value would entail. 

 

PUBLIC HEARIING 

Proposed FY 2012 Personal Property Tax Rate Increase 

Chairman Gooch opened the public hearing. 

 Mr. Sam Richardson, Rivanna District – spoke in opposition to the tax rate increase. 

 Mr. Dennis Holder, Kents Store – spoke in opposition to the tax rate increase. 

 Mr. Bob Ullenbruch, Palmyra District – spoke in opposition to the tax rate increase. 

 Mr. Sam Patterson, Palmyra District – spoke in opposition to the tax rate increase. 

 Ms. Claudia Thomas, Columbia District – spoke in opposition to the tax rate increase. 

 Mr. Thomas Payne, Palmyra District – spoke in reference to comparing Fluvanna to  

Louisa, and the difference between Flex Plan A vs. Flex Plan B, for the new high school. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the public hearing. 

 

PRESENTATION 

Proposed FY 2012 Personal Property Administrative Fee Increase 

Ms. Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst, provided a PowerPoint presentation on the FY 2012 

Personal Property Administrative Fee Increase.  Information was provided on what the proposed 

increase in the Personal Property Administrative Fee, from $ 6.00 to $ 18.00 for motorcycles and 

from $20.00 to $33.00 for all other motor vehicles would entail. 

 

PUBLIC HEARIING 

Proposed FY 2012 Personal Property Administrative Fee Increase 

Chairman Gooch opened the public hearing. 

The following citizens addressed the Board: 

 Mr. Sam Richardson, Columbia District – spoke in opposition to the fee increase. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the public hearing. 

 

PRESENTATION 

Proposed FY 2012 County Budget 

Ms. Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst, provided a PowerPoint presentation on the proposed FY 

2012 County Budget.  Ms. Besecker provided information on the advertised operating expenses; 

significant increases and decreases; total schools funding; local funding for schools; the 

enterprise funds; the advertised operating revenues; and local revenue sources. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Proposed FY 2012 County Budget 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, April 6
th

, 2011 

Page 7 

 

 7 

Chairman Gooch opened the public hearing. 

The following citizens addressed the Board: 

 Mr. Jerome Patchen, Palmyra District, representing Fluvanna Taxpayers Association – 

supports $.45 tax rate, and would like to see a resolution adopted to put all future capital 

improvements to referendum. 

 Mr. Sam Edwards, Cunningham District – opposed to a tax increase. 

 Mr. Fred Harris, Fork Union District – opposed to a tax increase. 

 Ms. Perrie Johnson, Fork Union District – supports full funding of schools. 

 Ms. Norma Hunter, Rivanna District – opposed to a tax increase. 

 Ms. Lori Hoffman, Rivanna District – supports $.57 tax rate, to fully fund schools. 

 Linda Fletcher, Cunningham District – supports full funding of schools. 

 Mr. Tom Payne, Palmyra District – spoke in reference to missed opportunities, supports 

full funding of schools. 

 Mr. Sam Richardson, Columbia District – spoke in reference to his use of democracy. 

 Ms. Janice O’Malley, Fork Union District – opposed to a tax increase. 

 Mr. Emerson Farley, Fork Union District – spoke in reference to privatizing education  

 Mr. Brian Phillips, Rivanna District – supports full funding of schools. 

 Ms. Tammy Grigg, Fork Union District – supports full funding of schools. 

 Mr. Adrian Miller, Rivanna District – opposed to a tax increase. 

 Ms. Berth Armstrong, Fork Union District – spoke in reference to paying taxes and the 

need for Economic Development. 

 Mr. Bob Ullenbruch, Palmyra District – spoke in reference to coming together with one 

idea. 

 Ms. Shirley Roundtree, Fork Union District – spoke in reference to the need for 

Economic Development. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the public hearing. 
 

COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION 

Mr. Fred Payne, County Attorney, reviewed with the board the procedure for discussing the budget. 

 

RECESS 

At 9:49 p.m., the Board recessed. 

 

RECONVENE 

At 10:00 p.m., the Board reconvened. 
 

ADJOURN 

MOTION: 

At 10:03 p.m., Mr. Kenney moved to adjourn the meeting of Wednesday, April 6th, 

2011.  Mr. Weaver seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  

Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Booker, Weaver and Fairchild.   NAYS:  None.   ABSENT: 

None     

 

 

 

        

John Y. Gooch, Chairman



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, April 6
th

, 2011 

Page 8 

 

 8 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
COUNTY OF FLUVANNA 

RESOLUTION 
 

At a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Fluvanna held in the 
Fluvanna County Courts Building at 2:00 p.m. on the 6th day of April 2011, at which the following 
members were present, the following resolution was adopted by a majority of all members of the 
Board of Supervisors, the vote being recorded in the minutes of the meeting, as shown below: 

 

 
PRESENT VOTE 

John Gooch, Chairman ................................................................................................ YEA 

Shaun Kenney, Vice-Chairman. ................................................................................... YEA 

Mozell Booker .............................................................................................................. YEA 

Donald Weaver ............................................................................................................ YEA 

Joe Chesser .................................................................................................................. YEA 

Chris Fairchild......................................................................................................... ABSENT 
 

 
On the motion of Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. Kenney, which carried by a vote of 5-0, the 

following resolution was adopted: 
 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE RENEWAL OF THE ADAMS CREEK 

AGRICULTURAL/FORESTAL DISTRICT FOR AN ADDITIONAL TEN-YEAR PERIOD TO 

EXPIRE MAY 16, 2021 
 

WHEREAS, the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors approved the creation of the 
Adams Creek Agricultural/Forestal District on May 16, 2001, for a ten year period; and 
 

WHEREAS, the district is set to expire on May 16, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 15.2-4311 of the State Code of Virginia, the 

Fluvanna County Planning & Community Development Department contacted the current property 
owners of parcels identified in the Adams Creek Agricultural/Forestal District, and advised them 
that the approved district would expire on May 16, 2011, and inquired whether the owners desired 
that the property remain in or be removed from the district. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, on this 6th day of April 2011, that the 
Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors hereby renews the Adams Creek Agricultural/Forestal 
District for an additional ten-year period, to expire on May 16, 2021 

 
 

______________________________ 
Mary Weaver, Clerk 
Board of Supervisors 

Fluvanna County, Virginia 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, April 6
th

, 2011 

Page 9 

 

 9 

RESOLUTION 

PROCLAMATION 

 

By virtue of the authority vested in us, we hereby proclaim the month of 

April as CELEBRATING CHILDREN MONTH in FLUVANNA 

COUNTY, in observation of CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION MONTH. 

 

WHEREAS, every child in our great county is a precious gift, full of 

promises and potential; and 

 

WHEREAS, child abuse and neglect is a serious problem in Virginia and 

across the nation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the prevention of child abuse is crucial to the preservation of 

the health and well-being of Fluvanna’s families and can be accomplished by 

providing support and information to families, as well as through increased 

community awareness; and 

 

WHEREAS, all children learn from role models at home, at church, at 

school, and in their communities and all children benefit from the love and 

leadership displayed by caring and responsible adults; and 

 

WHEREAS, children are our most precious resource, and we are committed 

to keeping the children of our community safe and happy 

 

NOW, THEREFORE WE, THE FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS, do hereby recognize APRIL 2011 as CELEBRATING 

CHILDREN MONTH in observation of CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION 

MONTH in FLUVANNA COUNTY, and we call this observance to the 

attention of all our citizens. 

  

 Signed and sealed this 6
th
 day of April, 2011 

 

 

_______________________   

John Y. Gooch 

Chair, County of Fluvanna Board of Supervisors 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, April 6
th

, 2011 

Page 10 

 

 10 

National Crime Victims’ Rights Week 
 

 At a regular monthly meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors held on 

Wednesday, April 6, 2011, in Palmyra, Virginia, the following resolution was adopted on a 

motion by Mr. Kenney, seconded by Mr. Chesser and voted in the affirmative: 

  

 WHEREAS, over 20 million Americans are victims of crime each year, suffering 

emotional, physical, psychological and financial toll as they have lost loved ones, life savings, 

physical and mental health, and often their sense of security that has the potential to irrevocably 

change the course of their lives forever; and 
 

 WHEREAS, more than 30 years of progress for crime victims stands on the shoulders of 

dedicated advocates and brave victims who overcame shame, isolation, and indifference to gain a 

voice, rights, and respect; and 

  

 WHEREAS, while victim assistance programs across the country are reaching more 

victims, public understanding of victims’ rights remains minimal, and our nation’s victim 

services system remains fragmented, underfunded, and uncoordinated; and 
 

 WHEREAS, history teaches us that, by working together, we can help victims of crime 

reshape their destinies and ensure that they receive the support they need, the respect they 

deserve, and the rights they have earned; and 
 

 WHEREAS, National Crime Victims’ Rights Week, April 10-16, 2011, provides an 

opportunity for us to reshape the future for victims by honoring the past and reflecting on hard-

won victories, and to recommit to working together to insist on better treatment for victims to 

help them overcome the harm caused by crime; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the Fluvanna Victim/Witness Assistance Program is joining forces with 

victim service programs, criminal justice officials, and concerned citizens throughout Fluvanna 

County and the Commonwealth of Virginia to raise awareness of victims’ rights and observe 

National Crime Victims’ Rights Week; and 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Fluvanna County Board of 

Supervisors does hereby proclaim the week of April 10-16, 2011 as Crime Victims’ Rights Week 

and reaffirm our commitment to respect and enforce victims’ rights and address their needs 

during National Crime Victims’ Rights Week and throughout the year;  
 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board expresses its appreciation for those 

victims and crime survivors who have turned personal tragedy into a motivating force to improve 

our response to victims of crime and build a more just community. 
 

 

________________________________   

John Y. Gooch, Chairman     April 6, 2011   

Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, April 6
th

, 2011 

Page 11 

 

 11 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

MOTION: I move to approve the payment of $3,975.00 from the BOS Contingency 

Fund (10086000-405870) for services rendered by Robinson Farmer Cox Associates for 

litigation support. 
 

 

AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  April 20
th

, 2011 

 

 

SUBJECT: Robinson Farmer Cox Associates PLLC Invoice 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends utilizing the BOS Contingency Fund for 

payment of this invoice.   

 

TIMING: Routine 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  If this request is approved, the BOS Contingency Fund 

would be reduced to $ 34,340.89. 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  This action is consistent with county policy. 

 

DISCUSSION:   
 

Staff: Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

 

Attachments:  Invoice, Robinson Farmer Cox Associates PLLC 

 

Copy: Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst 

 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 





MOTION: I move the Board of Supervisors approve the requested supplemental 

appropriation to accommodate the additional funding received from the Office of 

Emergency Services for the Fiscal Year 2011 Four-For-Life program. Revenue budget 

line 3-100-24040-0018 and expenditure budget line 4-100-32200-6022 shall both 

increase by $3680.89. 

 

AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  April 20
th

, 2011 
 

SUBJECT: FY2011 Four for Life supplemental appropriation 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend the motion be approved under consent 

agenda as this is an effort to maintain the accuracy of the FY2011 budget.  

 

TIMING:  Routine     

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  This will increase the general fund budget on both the 

revenue and expenditure sides by $3680.89.  No additional funding is required by the 

County.     

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  No policy implications.     

 

DISCUSSION:       

 

Staff:  Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst     

 

Copy: 

 

Attachments:  Award letter from Commonwealth of Virginia     

 

 
For County Administrator’s Use Only: 

 

Comments: 

 

 

 

 

County Administrator’s Signature 











MOTION: I move the Board of Supervisors approve a supplemental appropriation to 
accommodate funds recovered from an insurance claim for damages to a sheriff's 
department vehicle.  The following general ledger lines will increase by $1,315.70 - 3-
100-041010-0001 (Insurance Recovery) and 4-100-031200-3310. 
 
AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  April 20, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: Insurance Reimbursement for Sheriff's Department 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approval 
 
TIMING: Routine 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: General Fund budget will increase $1,315.70 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: none 
 
DISCUSSION: This action maintains the integrity of the FY11 Budget.   
 
 
Staff: Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst 
 
Copy: Sheriff Ryant Washington 
 
Attachments: Copies of Insurance checks 
 
 
For County Administrator’s Use Only: 
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
County Administrator’s Signature 







MOTION:   I move to adopt the resolution entitled “VDOT Secondary Six-Year Plan (2011-12 

through 2016-17) and the VDOT Construction Priority List (2011/12) as presented. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

****************************** 
For County Administrator’s Use Only 

 

Comments:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 











BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
County of Fluvanna 

Palmyra, Virginia 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 At a regular monthly meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors held at 7:00 
p.m. on Wednesday, April 20th 2011 in Palmyra, Virginia, the following action was taken: 
 
  Present     Vote 
  John Y. Gooch, Chairman    

Shaun V. Kenney, Vice Chairman   
  Mozell H. Booker     
  Joe Chesser       
  Chris S. Fairchild     
  Donald W. Weaver     
           __  
 On a motion by _______seconded by _______ and carried by a vote of ____ the 
following resolution was adopted. 

 

RESOLUTION 
VDOT Secondary Six-Year Plan (2011/12 through 2016/17) 

and 
VDOT Construction Priority List (2011/12) 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 33.1-23 and 33.1-23.4 of the 1950 Code of Virginia as amended, provides 
the opportunity for each county to work with the Virginia Department of Transportation in 
developing a Secondary Six-Year Road Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Board had previously agreed to assist in the preparation of this Plan, in 
accordance with the Virginia Department of Transportation policies and procedures, and 
participated in a public hearing on the proposed Plan (2011/12 though 2016/17) as well as the 
Construction Priority List (2011/12) on April 20th  2011 after duly advertised so that all citizens of 
the County had the opportunity to participate in said hearing and to make comments and 
recommendations concerning the proposed Plan and Priority List; and 
 
WHEREAS, Karen P. Kilby, District Programming Director, Virginia Department of 
Transportation, appeared before the Board and recommended approval of the Six-Year Plan for 
Secondary Roads (2011/12 through 2016/17) AND Construction Priority List (2011/12) for 
Fluvanna County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that since said Plan appears to be in the best interest 
of the Secondary Road System in Fluvanna County and of the citizens residing on the 
Secondary System, said Secondary Six-Year Plan (2011/12 through 2016/17) and Construction 
Priority List (2011/12) are hereby approved as presented at the public hearing. 
 
Adopted this 20th  day of April 2011 
by the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Jay Scudder, County Administrator 
 



 
 

      MMaarrcchh  

        22001111  

  

  

FFLLUUVVAANNNNAA  CCOOUUNNTTYY  

SSEECCOONNDDAARRYY  SSYYSSTTEEMM  

SSIIXX  YYEEAARR  PPRROOGGRRAAMM  

WWOORRKK  SSEESSSSIIOONN  



Table of Contents 
 

 

1.   Projected Allocations 

2.   Six Year Plan Facts 

3.   Terms In The Plan 

4.   Existing Six Year Plan 

5.    Secondary Traffic Counts 

6. Unpaved Roads in Fluvanna County 

7.   Unpaved Roads With 50 VPD or Greater  

8.   Federally Qualifying Secondary Roads 

9.   Projects To Add To Secondary Six Year Plan In 2011 Update 

10.   Projects To Consider At Future Updates As Funding Allows 

11.   Unpaved Road Improvement Options 

12.   Code of Va. Section 33.1-70.01 – Six Yr. Plan/Budget Process 

13. Blank Petition 

14.   Contact Information 

 

15.   General Highway Map with F.Y. 2010-2011  

                       Projects Prioritized by Number 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 1 

 

 

PROJECT ALLOCATIONS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



FLUVANNA COUNTY 

PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS 

2011 

SIX YEAR PLAN 
          

          

  REG. STATE MIN. UNPAVED FEDERAL TOTAL  

FISCAL YEAR FUNDS AVAILABLE STATE FUNDS FUNDS** FUNDS 

          

20011-2012 $102,114 $0 $0 $102,114 

2012-2013 $96,200 $0 $0 $96,200 

2013-2014 $96,200 $0 $0 $96,200 

2014-2015 $96,200 $0 $0 $96,200 

2015-2016 $96,200 $0 $0 $96,200 

2016-2017 $96,200 $0 $0 $96,200 

          

          

* Funding has a tendency to fluctuate as the financial climate of the state changes. 

** Federal funds must be applied to qualifying federal aid routes identified as major 

                                 collector or above. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 2 

 

 

SIX YEAR PLAN FACTS 
 

 



Secondary Six Year Plan  
FACTS 

 

Highway funding is derived from state and federal gasoline taxes, vehicle title fees, vehicle 

sales tax and one-half cent of state sales tax.  Therefore, the predictability of funding is dictated 

by the financial climate of the state’s economy and funding levels provided by the federal 

government. 

 

 Secondary construction funds are distributed to the counties proportionally by 80% 

population and a 20% area factors. 

 

 Another source of funding is our unpaved allocation that is based on the number of miles 

unpaved roads served by fifty (50) vehicles per day. 

 

 Unpaved road allocations can only be spent on an unpaved road with a minimum traffic 

county of fifty vehicles per day and money is distributed by miles of qualifying unpaved 

roads in each county. 

 

 Fluvanna County has about 296 miles of secondary roads in the state system with nearly 275 

miles paved. 

 

 Fluvanna County has nearly 21 miles of non-hard surfaced roads and of this; approximately 

6 miles qualify for hard surfacing.  0.77 miles of unpaved roads are currently included in the 

current Six Year Plan, of that 0.52 miles included in the plan does not qualify for hard 

surfacing. 

 

 Cost of building an unpaved road today is at least $800,000.00 per mile and a paved road is 

approximately $1,500,000.00 per mile assuming no major bridges are built. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 3 

 

 

TERMS IN THE PLAN 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Terms In The  

Fluvanna County 

Secondary Six Year 

Existing Plan 

 
 ROUTE:  Identifies the route number on which the project is located. 

 

 I.D.: Identification number used by VDOT to track the project. 

 

 ACCOMPLISHMENT: 

 STATE FORCES: means VDOT’S personnel will do job. 

 SAAP or CONTRACT: means the work will be performed through a contract. 

 RAILROAD:  means railroad will do the work. 

 

 TYPE OF FUNDS 

 STATE - State Funding 

 RRP - Railroad Programmed Funding 

 FH- Forest Highway 

 STP – Surface Transportation Program (Federal) 

 BROS – Bridge Replacement NOT on Federal System 

 RevSh – Revenue Sharing 

 

 DESCRIPTION 

 Road Name 

 VDOT Project Number (0635-032-P01, N-501) 

 Gives a location description of project limits.  The route number is known from previous column. 

 Length:  Length of project 

 Traffic Count:  Most recent Traffic Count 

 

 ESTIMATED COST:  The estimated costs given in this column begin as rough estimates usually based 

on historical data for the area.  As work progresses. A better cost estimate can be developed.  The 

estimated costs are updated at critical stages such as the time of the final field inspection, when plans are 

more defined and estimates can be relied upon to closely compare with the final project costs.  To the far 

left of the ESTIMATED COST column box the letters PE, RW, CON and TOTAL appear with the cost 

estimated to their right. 

 

 PE: this stands for preliminary engineering.  In this phase a preliminary field survey, utility location, 

environment/historical studies, road design alternatives, drawings, final field inspections and public 

hearings will be done.  This process can take a few months to several years to complete.  This phase 

must be 100% funded prior to moving to right of way phase. 



 RW:  This stands for right of way.  This is the portion of the project in which negotiations with 

property owners take place, payments are made and arrangement with utility companies are 

finalized, to obtain the land necessary for the project. This phase must be 100% funded prior to 

moving to construction phase. 

 

 CON:  This means construction.  In this phase the project is advertised to prospective contractors for 

bids.  Once the bids are opened and a contract awarded, construction can begin.  This phase must be 

100% funded before a project can be advertised.  

 

 TOTAL:  This is the total of all cost estimates and should reflect the final estimated cost of the 

project.  

 

 PREVIOUS FUNDING:  This column indicates prior allocations given to this project in the years 

preceding the current Six Year Improvement Program. 

 

 ADDITIONAL FUNDING REQUIRED:  This column shows the total allocation needed to complete 

funding of the project.  This amount is the Total Estimated Cost less the amount in Total Previous 

Funding. 

 

 

 PROJECTED FISCAL YEAR ALLOCATIONS:  The years shown under Fiscal Year Allocations 

header represent fiscal years beginning July 1 and ending June 30
th

.  This column has six sub-columns 

listed by fiscal year.  Each column indicates the amount of money anticipated to be available for the 

project for that fiscal year. 

 

 BALANCE TO COMPLETE: This column shows allocations needed in future years, beyond the Six 

Year Secondary Improvement Program, to complete paying for the project.  This amount is calculated 

by subtracting all the Projected Fiscal Year Allocations from the Additional Funding Required.           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 4 

 

 

EXISTING SIX YEAR PLAN 

 

(PLEASE SEE PDF FILE) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 5  

 

 

SECONDARY TRAFFIC COUNTS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



FLUVANNA COUNTY ROADS 

Route 
Number Route Alias 

Link 
Length Start Label End Label AADT Data Date 

P or 
U 

00600 South Boston Rd 1.60 32-618 Lake Monticello Rd 32-616 Union Mills Rd 6300 2009 P 

00600 South Boston Rd 3.10 SR 53 Jefferson Pkwy 32-618 Lake Monticello Rd 4700 2009 P 

00600 Paynes Mill Rd 0.60 32-634 Mechunk Creek Dr US 250 Richmond Rd 1100 2009 P 

00600 North Boston Rd 3.30 32-616 Union Mills Rd 32-634 Mechunk Creek Dr 750 07/15/2008 P 

00601 Courthouse Rd 0.55 US 15 James Madison Hwy 32-663; 32-1007 1300 2009 P 

00601 Courthouse Rd 0.60 32-615 Carysbrook Rd 32-608 Rising Sun Rd; Wilmington Rd 1200 2009 P 

00601 Courthouse Rd 3.06 32-663; 32-1007 32-615 Carysbrook Rd 700 2009 P 

00601 Venable Rd 3.20 32-608 Rising Sun Rd; Wilmington Rd 32-631 Dogwood Dr 670 2009 P 

00601 Venable Rd 1.95 32-631 Dogwood Dr 32-659 W, Kents Store Way 550 2009 P 

00601 Venable Rd 3.73 
32-659 E, Kents Store Way; Cedar Lane 
Rd 32-653 Three Chopt Rd 420 07/17/2008 P 

00602 Greenwood Circle 0.33 32-605 S, Shannon Hill Rd 0.33 MN 32-605 Shannon Hill Rd 30 07/08/2008 U 

00602 Greenwood Circle 0.02 0.33 MN 32-605 Shannon Hill Rd 32-605 N, Shannon Hill Rd 20 07/08/2008 U 

00603 Tabscott Rd 1.50 Goochland County Line 32-601 Venable Rd 90 07/17/2008 P 

00604 Covered Bridge Rd 1.01 2.79 MN 32-610 Community House Rd 32-601 Venable Rd 100 07/17/2008 P 

00604 Covered Bridge Rd 2.79 32-610 Community House Rd 2.79 MN 32-610 Community House Rd 60 07/17/2008 P 

00604 Covered Bridge Rd 0.60 Dead End 32-610 Community House Rd 9 07/17/2008 U 

00605 Shannon Hill Rd 3.19 32-659 Stage Junction Rd Goochland County Line 170 07/08/2008 P 

00606 Rose Hill Rd 0.80 32-659 Stage Junction Rd Dead End; Gap 60 06/24/2008 P 

00606 Hells Bend Rd 1.90 32-609 Hells Bend Rd 32-608 Wilmington Rd 50 07/09/2008 U 

00606 Rivanna Mills Rd 0.35 Dead End; Gap 32-609 Hells Bend Rd 30 06/24/2008 U 

00607 Bybee Rd 0.30 Louisa County Line West 32-613 Bybees Church Rd 1600 2009 P 

00607 Bybee Rd 0.40 32-696 Deerfield Rd Louisa County Line East 540 06/22/2005 P 

00607 Bybee Rd 0.70 32-613 Bybees Church Rd 32-696 Deerfield Rd 490 06/22/2005 P 

00608 Wilmington Rd 1.40 32-606 Hells Bend Rd 32-601 Venable Rd; Courthouse Rd 600 07/08/2008 P 

00608 Rising Sun Rd 3.60 32-628 Evergreen Church Rd 32-629 Deep Creek Rd 480 07/08/2008 P 

00608 Rising Sun Rd 0.70 32-629 Deep Creek Rd 32-632 E, Ridge Rd 460 07/08/2008 P 

00608 Rising Sun Rd 0.20 32-601 Venable Rd; Courthouse Rd 32-628 Evergreen Church Rd 430 07/08/2008 P 

00608 Wilmington Rd 0.80 32-659 Cedar Lane Rd; Stage Junction Rd 32-606 Hells Bend Rd 410 07/08/2008 P 

00608 Barnaby Rd 0.90 32-632 W, Ridge Rd 32-613 Bybees Church Rd 170 07/08/2008 P 

00609 Hells Bend Rd 0.04 3.40 MN 32-606 32-615 Carysbrook Rd 40 06/24/2008 P 

00609 Hells Bend Rd 3.40 32-606 Hells Bend Rd; Rivanna Mills Rd 3.40 MN 32-606 20 06/24/2008 U 

00610 Community House Rd 2.00 Goochland County Line 32-604 Covered Bridge Rd 120 07/17/2008 P 

00610 Community House Rd 1.53 32-604 Covered Bridge Rd 32-659 Cedar Lane Rd 110 07/17/2008 P 

00611 Paynes Landing Rd 0.50 32-621 Lantre Lane SR 6, West River Rd 230 07/20/2005 P 

00611 Paynes Landing Rd 0.60 32-662 Dobby Creek Rd 32-621 Lantre Lane 150 07/20/2005 P 

00611 Paynes Landing Rd 0.50 Dead End 32-662 Dobby Creek Rd 100 07/20/2005 P 

00612 Winnsville Dr 1.29 US 15 James Madison Hwy SR 6 West River Rd 1300 2009 P 



00613 Bybees Church Rd 1.40 32-631 Hunters Lodge Rd; Dogwood Dr 32-607 Bybee Rd 1700 2009 P 

00613 Bybees Church Rd 0.60 32-630 Hollands Rd 32-631 Hunters Lodge Rd; Dogwood Dr 1400 2009 P 

00613 Bybees Church Rd 0.70 32-632 Ridge Rd 32-630 Hollands Rd 1100 2009 P 

00613 Bybees Church Rd 1.30 US 15 James Madison Hwy 32-608 Barnaby Rd 540 07/08/2008 P 

00613 Bybees Church Rd 1.80 32-608 Barnaby Rd 32-632 Ridge Rd 340 07/08/2008 P 

00614 Teppee Town Rd 2.30 Dead End 32-612 Winnsville Dr 260 06/26/2008 P 

00615 Zion Rd 0.43 US 250 Richmond Rd Louisa County Line 1400 04/30/2007 P 

00615 Carysbrook Rd 3.44 US 15 James Madison Hwy 32-601 Courthouse Rd 520 06/24/2008 P 

00616 Union Mills Rd 4.50 Albermarle County Line 32-600 North Boston Rd; South Boston Road 3800 2009 P 

00616 Union Mills Rd 2.30 
32-600 North Boston Rd; South Boston 
Road US 15 James Madison Hwy 2100 2009 P 

00617 Morris Rd 0.25 US 15 James Madison Hwy Dead End 180 07/15/2008 P 

00617 Little Creek Rd 1.20 32-631 Troy Rd US 15 James Madison Hwy 80 07/15/2008 P 

00618 Lake Monticello Rd 4.03 SR 53 Thomas Jefferson Pkwy 32-600 Boston Road South 3000 2009 P 

00618 Martin Kings Rd 0.50 Albemarle County Line; 02-618 SR 53 Thomas Jefferson Pkwy 1600 06/21/2005 P 

00619 Ruritan Lake Rd 2.10 32-761 Branch Rd 32-660 Sclaters Ford Rd 1100 07/10/2008 P 

00619 Ruritan Lake Rd 3.30 Albemarle County Line 32-761 Branch Rd 490 07/10/2008 P 

00620 Rolling Road South 4.60 32-639 Long Acre Rd Albemarle County Line 1300 2009 P 

00620 Rolling Road South 2.72 SR 6, West River Rd 32-639 Long Acre Rd 910 2009 P 

00621 Lantre Lane 0.40 Dead End 32-611 Paynes Landing Rd 50 06/26/2008 U 

00622 Ridge Spring Rd 0.06 32-1302 N, Hardware Hills Circle Albemarle County Line; 02-622 260 06/26/2008 P 

00622 Ridge Spring Rd 1.04 Albemarle County Line; 02-622 32-1302 N, Hardware Hills Circle 240 06/26/2008 P 

00623 Perkins Rd 2.30 32-659 Kents Store Way 32-653 Three Chopt Rd 170 06/29/2005 P 

00624 Gale Hill Rd 0.10 32-656 S, Bremo Rd 32-656 N, Bremo Rd 260 06/10/2005 P 

00624 Gravel Hill Rd 0.80 SR 6 MID SR 6 W, East River Rd 220 06/24/2008 P 

00624 Point of Fork Rd 1.30 Dead End 32-656 S, Bremo Rd 200 06/01/2005 P 

00624 Red Bank Lane 0.96 SR 6 W, East River Rd Dead End 160 06/24/2008 P 

00624 Gale Hill Rd 0.87 32-656 N, Bremo Rd SR 6 E, East River Rd 150 06/01/2005 P 

00624 Holmhead Circle 0.20 SR 6 E, East River Rd SR 6 MID 30 06/24/2008 U 

00625 Oak Creek Rd 0.57 32-601 W, Courthouse Rd 32-678 Miles Jackson Rd 140 07/08/2008 P 

00625 Oak Creek Rd 0.80 32-678 Miles Jackson Rd 32-601 E, Courthouse Rd 140 07/08/2008 P 

00625 Oak Hill Lane 0.69 32-601 E, Courthouse Rd Dead End 70 07/08/2008 P 

00626 Jordan Store Rd 0.20 32-699 Meeks Lane Louisa County Line 490 07/17/2008 P 

00626 Jordan Store Rd 1.60 32-659 Kents Store Way 32-699 Meeks Lane 330 07/17/2008 P 

00627 Zion Rd 0.30 US 250; 32-698 32-664 Edd Ridge Lane 1400 07/15/2008 P 

00627 Zion Rd 0.35 32-664 Edd Ridge Lane Louisa County Line 1300 07/15/2008 P 

00628 Evergreen Church Rd 0.70 Dead End 32-608 Rising Sun Rd 40 07/08/2008 P 

00629 Deep Creek Rd 1.80 32-608 Rising Sun Rd 32-630 S, Mountain Laurel Rd 340 06/22/2005 P 

00629 Deep Creek Rd 1.35 32-630 N, Hollands Rd 32-631 Dogwood Dr 200 07/15/2008 P 

00629 Deep Creek Rd 0.20 32-630 S, Mountain Laurel Rd 32-630 N, Hollands Rd 180 06/22/2005 P 

00629 Deep Creek Rd 2.45 32-631 Dogwood Dr 32-626 Jordan Store Rd 160 07/17/2008 P 

00630 Hollands Rd 2.10 32-629 N, Deep Creek Rd 32-613 Bybees Church Rd 190 07/15/2008 P 

00630 Plain Dealing Rd 1.80 32-659 Cedar Lane Rd 32-601 Venable Rd 150 07/17/2008 P 

00630 Mountain Laurel Rd 2.90 32-601 Venable Rd 32-629 S, Deep Creek Rd 130 07/17/2008 P 



00631 Troy Rd 0.50 US 15 James Madison Hwy 32-633 North Boston Rd 1500 2009 P 

00631 Troy Rd 2.26 32-633 North Boston Rd US 250 Richmond Rd 670 07/15/2008 P 

00631 Hunters Lodge Rd 2.80 32-613 Bybees Church Rd US 15 James Madison Hwy 260 07/08/2008 P 

00631 Dogwood Dr 3.25 32-629 Deep Creek Rd 32-613 Bybees Church Rd 230 07/17/2008 P 

00631 Dogwood Dr 2.00 32-601 Venable Rd 32-629 Deep Creek Rd 170 07/17/2008 P 

00632 Ridge Rd 1.50 32-608 N, Rising Sun Rd 32-613 Bybees Church Rd 760 2009 P 

00632 Ridge Rd 0.30 32-608 S, Barnaby Rd 32-608 N, Rising Sun Rd 420 06/22/2005 P 

00632 Ridge Rd 0.20 US 15 James Madison Hwy 32-661 Rescue Lane 290 07/08/2008 P 

00632 Ridge Rd 3.20 32-661 Rescue Lane 32-608 S, Barnaby Rd 270 06/28/2005 P 

00633 North Boston Rd 0.90 32-600 North Boston Rd 32-676 Oliver Creek Rd 1500 07/15/2008 P 

00633 North Boston Rd 1.10 32-676 Oliver Creek Rd 32-631 Troy Rd 990 07/15/2008 P 

00634 Mechunk Creek Dr 1.70 Dead End 32-600 Paynes Mill Rd; North Boston Rd 280 06/16/2005 P 

00635 Cannery Lane 0.52 Dead End US 15 James Madison Hwy 20 07/10/2008 U 

00636 Garden Lane 0.95 SR 53 Thomas Jefferson Pkwy Dead End 410 07/10/2008 U 

00636 Nahor Manor Rd 2.00 Dead End SR 53 Thomas Jefferson Pkwy 200 07/10/2008 P 

00637 Poplar Spring Rd 0.30 32-773 Pat Dennis Rd 32-773 The Cross Rd 1200 2009 P 

00637 Antioch Rd 1.94 32-773 The Cross Rd 32-669 Kidds Dairy Rd 770 2009 P 

00637 Poplar Spring Rd 0.19 SR 6 Canal St NCL Scottsville 750 2009 P 

00637 Poplar Spring Rd 1.21 NCL Scottsville 32-773 Pat Dennis Rd 680 2009 P 

00637 Antioch Rd 2.54 32-669 Kidds Dairy Rd 32-620 Rolling Rd 500 2009 P 

00638 Old Rectory Lane 0.60 SR 6, East River Rd Dead End 110 06/24/2008 P 

00639 Long Acre Rd 3.45 32-688 Hidden Valleys Rd 32-640 Haden Martin Rd 440 07/10/2008 P 

00639 Long Acre Rd 1.25 32-620 Rolling Rd South 32-688 Hidden Valleys Rd 410 07/10/2008 P 

00640 Haden Martin Rd 5.70 SR 6 E, West River Rd US 15 James Madison Hwy 2200 06/26/2008 P 

00640 Cunningham Rd 0.48 32-697 Cunningham Rd SR 6 W, West River Rd 630 06/26/2008 P 

00640 Shores Rd 0.45 32-677 Old Fork Lane 32-697 Cunningham Rd 610 2009 P 

00640 Shores Rd 2.60 32-714 Union Church Rd 32-677 Old Fork Lane 390 06/26/2008 P 

00640 Shores Rd 1.65 32-650 Mountain Hill Rd 32-714 Union Church Rd 180 06/26/2008 P 

00640 Shores Rd 0.30 32-658 Lowfields Lane 32-650 Mountain Hill Rd 90 06/26/2008 P 

00640 Shores Rd 0.20 Dead End 32-658 Lowfields Lane 8 06/26/2008 P 

00641 Lone Oak Rd 0.65 Dead End 32-650 Mountain Hill Rd 210 06/06/2005 P 

00642 Spring Rd 1.90 32-656 Bremo Rd 32-655 West Bottom Rd 170 06/01/2005 P 

00643 Transco Rd 0.40 32-637 Antioch Rd 32-679 Center B Rd 270 07/10/2008 P 

00643 Transco Rd 1.50 32-679 Center B Rd 32-620 Rolling Rd 250 07/10/2008 P 

00644 Salem Church Rd 0.35 US 15 N, James Madison Hwy 32-700 Wylock Lane 260 07/08/2008 P 

00644 Salem Church Rd 1.35 32-700 Wylock Lane 32-616 Union Mills Rd 250 07/08/2008 P 

00644 Friendship Rd 0.90 US 15 S, James Madison Hwy US 15 S MID 100 07/08/2008 P 

00644   0.30 US 15 N MID US 15 N, James Madison Hwy 4 07/08/2008 U 

00645 Beals Lane 0.70 32-662 Dobby Creek Rd SR 6, West River Rd 610 06/26/2008 P 

00645 Beals Lane 0.86 Dead End 32-662 Dobby Creek Rd 170 06/26/2008 P 

00646 Hardware Rd 1.38 32-687 N, Radicel Circle SR 6, West River Rd 360 07/20/2005 P 

00646 Hardware Rd 0.14 32-687 S, Radicel Circle 32-687 N, Radicel Circle 200 07/20/2005 P 

00646 Hardware Rd 0.48 1.74 MN Dead End 32-687 S, Radicel Circle 120 07/20/2005 P 

00646 Hardware Rd 1.74 Dead End 1.74 MN Dead End 90 07/20/2005 P 



00647 Shiloh Church Rd 3.50 32-649 Central Plains Rd 32-640 Haden Martin Rd 130 07/10/2008 P 

00648 Turner Rd 0.90 32-649 Central Plains Rd 32-647 Shiloh Church Rd 20 07/10/2008 U 

00649 Central Plains Rd 0.36 32-673 Bethel Church Rd US 15 James Madison Hwy 2300 2009 P 

00649 Central Plains Rd 3.59 SR 6 West River Rd 32-673 Bethel Church Rd 1100 2009 P 

00650 Mountain Hill Rd 1.72 32-641 Lone Oak Rd SR 6, West River Rd 630 06/25/2008 P 

00650 Mountain Hill Rd 2.40 32-640 Shores Rd 32-641 Lone Oak Rd 240 06/06/2005 P 

00651 Thessalonia Rd 1.20 SR 6, West River Rd Dead End 590 06/06/2005 P 

00652 Academy Rd 1.67 32-654 Cloverdale Rd US 15 James Madison Hwy 290 06/01/2005 P 

00653 Three Chopt Rd 0.57 32-601 Venable Rd US 250 Broad St Rd 380 07/17/2008 P 

00653 Three Chopt Rd 1.80 Louisa County Line 32-681 320 07/17/2008 P 

00653 Three Chopt Rd 0.03 32-681 32-601 Venable Rd 300 07/17/2008 P 

00654 Cloverdale Rd 1.50 32-655, West Bottom Rd 32-652 Academy Rd 310 06/24/2008 P 

00654 Cloverdale Rd 0.32 32-652 Academy Rd 32-694 Deer Lane 310 06/24/2008 P 

00654 Cloverdale Rd 2.12 32-694 Deer Lane 32-656 Bremo Rd 200 06/24/2008 P 

00655 West Bottom Rd 0.70 32-654 Cloverdale Rd US 15 James Madison Hwy 690 2009 P 

00655 West Bottom Rd 0.90 32-642 Spring Rd 32-654 Cloverdale Rd 390 2009 P 

00655 West Bottom Rd 1.30 32-656 Bremo Rd 32-642 Spring Rd 230 2009 P 

00655 Glenarvon Rd 1.05 Dead End 32-656 Bremo Rd 150 06/24/2008 P 

00656 Bryants Ford Rd 0.70 SR 6 S, East River Rd 32-716 Anderson Lane 510 06/10/2005 P 

00656 Bremo Rd 0.50 US 15 James Madison Hwy 32-657 Bremo Bluff Rd 350 05/27/2005 P 

00656 Bremo Rd 1.90 32-657 Bremo Bluff Rd 32-642 Spring Rd 250 06/24/2008 P 

00656 Bremo Rd 5.14 32-655, West Bottom Rd; Glenarvon Rd 32-624 S, Gale Hill Rd; Point of Fork Rd 240 06/24/2008 P 

00656 Bremo Rd 0.32 32-642 Spring Rd 32-655, West Bottom Rd; Glenarvon Rd 230 06/24/2008 P 

00656 Bremo Rd 0.44 32-624 N, Gale Hill Rd SR 6 N, East River Rd 230 06/24/2008 P 

00656 Bryants Ford Rd 0.35 32-716 Anderson Lane Dead End 120 06/10/2005 P 

00657 Bremo Bluff Rd 1.00 32-656 Bremo Rd US 15 James Madison Hwy 180 06/26/2008 P 

00657 Bremo Bluff Rd 0.08 Dead End 32-656 Bremo Rd 40 05/27/2005 P 

00658 Lowfields Lane 0.12 Dead End 32-640 Shores Rd 40 06/26/2008 U 

00659 Kents Store Way 3.72 32-601 W, Venable Rd Louisa County Line 860 2009 P 

00659 Kents Store Way 0.08 32-601 E, Venable Rd 32-601 W, Venable Rd 720 2009 P 

00659 Stage Junction Rd 0.23 SR 6 Saint James St NCL Columbia 520 2009 P 

00659 Stage Junction Rd 2.89 NCL Columbia 32-605 Shannon Hill Rd 450 2009 P 

00659 
Cedar Lane Rd; Kent Store 
Rd 2.30 32-630 Plain Dealing Rd 32-601 E, Venable Rd 420 2009 P 

00659 Stage Junction Rd 3.08 32-605 Shannon Hill Rd 32-608 Wilmington Rd 330 2009 P 

00659 Cedar Lane Rd 2.50 32-608 Wilmington Rd 32-630 Plain Dealing Rd 230 2009 P 

00660 Ruritan Lake Rd 0.14 32-619; Seleters Ford Rd SR 53 Thomas Jefferson Pkwy 3100 07/10/2008 P 

00660 Seleters Ford Rd 3.00 32-640 Haden Martin Rd 32-619 Ruritan Lake Rd 1700 07/10/2008 P 

00661 Rescue Lane 0.10 32-632 Ridge Rd US 15 James Madison Hwy 120 07/20/2005 P 

00662 Dobby Creek Rd 1.70 32-645 Beals Lane 32-611 Paynes Landing Rd 130 07/20/2005 P 

00663 Georges Mill Rd 0.35 32-678 Miles Jackson Rd 32-608 Rising Sun Rd 290 06/28/2005 P 

00663 Georges Mill Rd 2.45 32-601; 32-1007 32-678 Miles Jackson Rd 220 06/28/2005 P 

00664 Edd Ridge Lane 0.25 32-627 Zion Rd Dead End 250 06/16/2005 P 

00665 Grace Johnson Lane 0.10 32-653 Three Chopt Rd US 250 Three Notch Rd 240 06/28/2005 P 



00666 Magnolia Lane 0.15 32-657 Bremo Bluff Rd Dead End 10 06/26/2008 P 

00667 Old Columbia Rd 0.15 32-1101; 32-1108 Goochland County Line 400 06/08/2005 P 

00667 Old Columbia Rd 0.05 SR 6; 32-690 32-1101; 32-1108 340 06/08/2005 P 

00668 Cloverleaf Dr 0.30 Dead End 32-654 Cloverdale Rd 40 06/24/2008 P 

00669 Kidds Dairy Rd 1.65 32-637 Antioch Rd 32-706 Aldridge Lane 370 07/19/2005 P 

00669 Kidds Dairy Rd 3.19 32-706 Aldridge Lane 32-620 Rolling Rd 210 07/19/2005 P 

00670 Prospect Lane 0.20 Dead End 32-676 Oliver Creek Rd 120 06/16/2005 P 

00671 Cabel Lane 0.21 SR 6 E, West River Rd 32-612 Winnsville Dr 170 06/06/2005 P 

00671 Gold Mine Rd 0.94 SR 6 W, West River Rd 0.94 ME SR 6 150 06/06/2004 P 

00671 Gold Mine Rd 0.76 0.94 ME SR 6 32-672 Carys Creek Rd 80 06/06/2005 P 

00671 Gold Mine Rd 1.50 32-672 Carys Creek Rd SR 6 E, West River Rd 70 06/06/2005 P 

00672 Carys Creek Rd 4.00 32-671 Gold Mine Rd US 15 James Madison Hwy 20 06/24/2008 U 

00673 Bethel Church Rd 0.38 32-649 Central Plains Rd US 15 James Madison Hwy 540 06/06/2005 P 

00674 Timber Rd 0.20 Goochland County Line 32-659 Stage Junction Rd 90 07/08/2008 U 

00674 Timber Rd 0.20 Dead End Goochland County Line 20 07/08/2008 U 

00675 Old Drivers Hill Rd 0.50 Dead End, Gap SR 6 E, West River Rd 120 06/26/2008 U 

00675 Canal St 0.05 SR 6 W, Main St Dead End, Gap 80 06/26/2008 U 

00676 Oliver Creek Rd 0.20 32-670 Prospect Lane US 250 Richmond Rd 1000 07/15/2008 P 

00676 Oliver Creek Rd 1.50 32-692 Kathys Lane 32-670 Prospect Lane 550 07/15/2008 P 

00676 Diamond Rd 0.20 US 250 Richmond Rd Louisa County Line 430 07/15/2008 P 

00676 Oliver Creek Rd 1.15 32-633 North Boston Rd 32-692 Kathys Lane 270 07/15/2008 P 

00677 Old Fork Lane 0.60 Dead End 32-640 Shores Rd 47 06/26/2008 U 

00678 Miles Jackson Rd 1.50 32-625 Oak Creek Rd 32-663 Georges Mill Rd 130 06/28/2005 P 

00679 Center B Rd 0.30 Dead End 32-643 Transco Rd 7 07/10/2008 U 

00680 Middle Fork Rd 1.20 32-639 Long Acre Rd Dead End 40 07/19/2005 U 

00681   0.02 32-601 Venable Rd 32-653 Three Chopt Rd 160 07/17/2008 P 

00682 Little Mountain Rd 0.80 Dead End 32-649 Central Plains Rd 100 07/10/2008 P 

00683 Rockfish Run Rd 0.75 Dead End SR 6,  West River Rd 150 06/26/2008 P 

00684 Franklin Lane 0.70 Dead End 32-608 Rising Sun Rd 110 07/08/2008 P 

00685 Colemans Lane 0.34 Dead End 32-659 Stage Junction Rd 80 07/07/2008 P 

00686 Harris Lane 0.50 32-608 Rising Sun Rd Dead End 130 07/08/2008 P 

00687 Radicel Circle 0.16 32-646 Hardware Rd 32-646 Hardware Rd 60 06/26/2008 U 

00688 Hidden Valleys Rd 1.00 32-639 Long Acre Rd Dead End 140 07/10/2008 P 

00689 Edgecomb Rd 0.30 US 250 Richmond Rd 54-615, Louisa County Line 440 06/16/2005 P 

00690 Columbia Rd 0.20 Cumberland County Line SR 6; 32-667 570 2009 P 

00692 Kathys Lane 0.45 Dead End 32-676 Oliver Creek Rd 80 07/15/2008 P 

00693 Bluebird Lane 0.60 32-639 Long Acre Rd Dead End 170 07/19/2005 P 

00694 Deer Lane 0.15 32-654 Cloverdale Rd 32-715 Stag Rd 230 06/01/2005 P 

00694 Deer Lane 0.67 32-715 Stag Rd Dead End 140 06/01/2005 P 

00695 Deer Lane 0.30 Dead End US 15 James Madison Hwy 60 06/26/2008 P 

00696 Deerfield Rd 0.45 Louisa County Line 54-626 Mallory Rd 140 07/17/2008 P 

00696 Deerfield Rd 2.10 32-607 Bybee Rd Louisa County Line 60 06/22/2005 P 

00697 Cunningham Rd 0.63 SR 6 West River Rd 32-640 Cunningham Rd; Shores Rd 390 2009 P 

00698 Memory Lane 0.30 Dead End US 250; 32-627 140 06/16/2005 P 



00699 Meeks Lane 0.35 Dead End 32-626 Jordan Store Rd 100 06/28/2005 P 

00700 Wylock Lane 0.35 Dead End 32-644 Salem Church Rd 160 06/21/2005 P 

00702 Pine Lane 0.27 Dead End US 15 James Madison Hwy 110 06/06/2005 P 

00703 Davis Lane 0.30 Dead End 32-624 Gravel Hill Rd 100 06/24/2008 P 

00704 Paulette School Rd 0.15 32-649 Central Plains Rd SR 6, West River Rd 350 06/06/2005 P 

00705 Cohasset Circle 0.41 SR 6 W, West River Rd SR 6 E, West River Rd 20 06/06/2005 P 

00706 Aldridge Lane 0.75 32-669 Kidds Dairy Rd Dead End 190 06/26/2008 P 

00707 Southwinds Court 0.06 US 250 Richmond Rd Dead End 60 06/16/2005 P 

00708 Blue Ridge Dr 0.74 Dead End US 250 Richmond Rd 460 07/15/2008 P 

00709 Martin Lane 0.25 Dead End 32-600 South Boston Rd 100 07/10/2008 U 

00710 New Fork Church Lane 0.30 Dead End 32-650 Mountain Hill Rd 40 06/26/2008 P 

00711 Troy Woods Court 0.20 32-600 North Boston Rd Dead End 100 06/16/2005 P 

00712 Ferncliff Farms Lane 0.55 32-659 Kents Store Way Dead End 140 06/28/2005 P 

00713 Bowles Town Lane 0.30 Dead End US 15 James Madison Hwy 49 06/26/2008 P 

00714 Union Church Rd 0.15 Dead End 32-640 Shores Rd 60 06/26/2008 U 

00715 Stag Rd 0.15 32-694 Deer Lane Dead End 70 06/24/2008 U 

00716 Anderson Lane 0.15 Dead End 32-656 Bryants Ford Rd 40 06/24/2008 U 

00725 Buck Ridge Rd 0.27 Cul-de-Sac 32-708 Blue Ridge Dr 40 07/15/2008 P 

00747 Two County Lane 0.10 US 250 Richmond Rd Louisa County Line 80 07/17/2008 U 

00759 Sunnyfield Lane 0.60 Albemarle County Line US 250 Richmond Rd 130 07/15/2008 P 

00759 White Hill Rd 0.60 US 250 Richmond Rd Dead End 90 07/15/2008 U 

00761 Branch Rd 0.10 32-680 Middle Fork Rd 32-619 Ruritan Lake Rd 590 07/10/2008 P 

00761 Branch Rd 4.00 32-620 S, Rolling Rd 32-680 Middle Fork Rd 480 07/10/2008 P 

00761 Briery Creek Rd 1.00 Albemarle County Line; 02-761 32-620 N, Rolling Rd 180 07/10/2008 P 

00773 Pat Dennis Rd 0.30 Albemarle County Line; 02-773 32-637 W, Spring Rd 770 06/26/2008 P 

00773 The Cross Rd 0.85 32-637 E, Antioch Rd SR 6, West River Rd 540 06/26/2008 P 

00795 Zion Park Rd 0.04 Dead End Fluvanna County Line 600 04/23/2007 P 

00799 Beaverdam Rd 1.80 US 250 Richmond Rd Albemarle County Line 670 07/15/2008 P 

01001 Main St 0.09 32-1003 Court Square 32-1002 Palmyra Way 380 06/02/2005 P 

01001 Main St 0.19 US 15 S, James Madison Hwy 32-1003 Court Square 370 2009 P 

01001 Main St 0.17 32-1002 Palmyra Way US 15 N, James Madison Hwy 190 05/27/2005 P 

01002 Palmyra Way 0.05 32-1001 Main St US 15; 32-1005 270 06/02/2005 P 

01003 Court Square 0.06 32-1001 Main St US 15 James Madison Hwy 190 2009 P 

01004 Stone Jail St 0.05 32-1001 Main St 32-1003 Court Square 230 05/27/2005 P 

01005 Church St 0.10 US 15; 32-1002 Dead End 10 07/08/2008 U 

01006 Saints Rest Lane 0.20 32-601 Courthouse Rd Dead End 20 07/08/2008 U 

01007 Stoneleigh Rd 0.80 US 15 James Madison Hwy 
32-601 Courthouse Rd; 32-663 Georges Mill 
Rd 70 07/08/2008 U 

01010 Stage Coach Hills Rd 0.08 SR 53 Thomas Jefferson Parkway 32-1011 Stage Coach Hills Rd; Cedar Hill Rd 260 07/25/2005 P 

01011 Stage Coach Hills Rd 0.37 32-1010 Stage Coach Hills Rd 32-1012 E, Orchard Park Rd 240 07/25/2005 P 

01011 Cedar Hill Rd 0.15 32-1012 W, Orchard Park Rd 32-1010 Stage Coach Hills Rd 100 07/25/2005 P 

01011 Stage Coach Hills Rd 0.02 Dead End 32-1012 W, Orchard Park Rd 60 07/25/2005 P 

01011 Stage Coach Hills Rd 0.12 32-1012 E, Orchard Park Rd Dead End 20 07/25/2005 P 

01012 Orchard Park Rd 0.26 32-1011 W, Stage Coach Hills Rd 32-1011 E, Cedar Hill Rd; Stage Coach Hills 40 07/15/2008 P 



Rd 

01015 Turkey Sag Rd 0.16 SR 53 Thomas Jefferson Parkway Dead End 7500 07/10/2008 P 

01020 Fair Oaks Drive 0.56 Dead End 32-619 Ruritan Lake Rd 100 07/25/2005 P 

01023 Industrial Way 0.28 32-631 Troy Rd Cul-de-Sac 610 07/15/2008 P 

01030 Fieldstone Dr 0.18 32-1033; 32-1034 US 250; 32-707 320 06/21/2005 P 

01030 Fieldstone Dr 0.21 32-1031 Autumn Ridge Dr; Willow Dr 32-1033; 32-1034 230 06/21/2005 P 

01030 Fieldstone Dr 0.40 Cul-de-Sac 32-1031 Autumn Ridge Dr; Willow Dr 70 06/21/2005 P 

01031 Willow Dr 0.28 Cul-de-Sac 32-1030 Fieldstone Dr 120 06/21/2005 P 

01031 Autumn Ridge Dr 0.12 32-1030 Fieldstone Dr 32-1032 Pembrooke Ct 110 06/21/2005 P 

01031 Autumn Ridge Dr 0.17 32-1032 Pembrooke Ct Cul-de-Sac 60 06/21/2005 P 

01032 Pembrooke Ct 0.04 32-1031 Autumn Ridge Dr Cul-de-Sac 40 06/21/2005 P 

01033 Deer Crossing Lane 0.15 32-1030 Fieldstone Dr Cul-de-Sac 50 07/25/2005 P 

01034 Spring Meadow Lane 0.28 Cul-de-Sac 32-1030; 32-1033 120 07/15/2008 P 

01035 Pine Ridge Court 0.04 32-1030 Fieldstone Dr Dead End 40 07/15/2008 P 

01036 Tall Oaks Court 0.05 Dead End 32-1031 Willow Dr 50 07/15/2008 P 

01037 Abby Rd 0.39 32-600 South Boston Rd Cul-de-Sac 0   P 

01038 Justin Drive 0.07 32-1037 Dead End 0   P 

01040 Broken Island Rd 1.68 32-600 Boston Rd South Dead End 350 07/15/2008 P 

01041 Honeysuckle Court 0.06 Dead End 32-1040 Broken Island Rd 40 07/15/2008 P 

01042 Whispering Pines Lane 0.12 Cul-de-Sac 32-1040 Broken Island Rd 70 07/15/2008 P 

01043 Queen Annes Court 0.05 Dead End 32-1042 Whispering Pines Lane 30 07/15/2008 P 

01044 Blue Bell Lane 0.07 Dead End 32-1040 Broken Island Rd 20 07/15/2008 P 

01045 Redbud Court 0.04 Dead End 32-1040 Broken Island Rd 20 07/15/2008 P 

01050 Fox Hollow Lane 1.18 Cul-de-Sac SR 53 Thomas Jefferson Pkwy 270 07/10/2008 P 

01051 Fox Trot Lane 0.06 Cul-de-Sac 32-1050 Fox Hollow Lane 70 07/10/2008 P 

01052 Fox Chase Lane 0.08 32-1050 Fox Hollow Lane Cul-de-Sac 45 07/10/2008 P 

01053 Fox Hunt Trail 0.11 Cul-de-Sac 32-1050 Fox Hollow Lane 50 07/10/2008 P 

01054 Old Ridge Lane 0.10 32-1050 Fox Hollow Lane Cul-de-Sac 70 07/10/2008 P 

01060 Glen Circle 0.53 Glen Circle US 250 Richmond Rd 0   P 

01065 Olive Ridge Lane 0.48 Cul-de-Sac 32-676 Oliver Creek Rd 0   P 

01070 Antioch Springs Lane 0.50 Cul-de-Sac 32-761 Branch Rd 0   P 

01071 Glebe Lane 0.55 Cul-de-Sac 32-1070 0   P 

01072 Fallen Oak Way 0.11 32-1070 Cul-de-Sac 0   P 

01073 Blackberry Court 0.09 32-1070 Cul-de-Sac 0   P 

01084 Pelham Drive 0.12 Louisa County Line; 54-1084 Cul-de-Sac 0   P 

01101 Cameron St 0.15 32-667; 32-1108 32-1104 Washington St; Gap 50 06/08/2005 P 

01101 Tammany St 0.06 32-1109 Tammany St; Gap 32-1103 Rivanna St 20 06/24/2008 U 

01102 Fayette St 0.05 32-1105, K St 32-1104 Washington St 60 06/24/2008 U 

01102 Fayette St 0.20 32-659 NCL Columbia 32-1105, K St 40 06/24/2008 U 

01102 Fayette St 0.11 32-1104 Washington St 32-1108 Saint Patrick St 30 06/24/2008 U 

01102 Fayette St 0.06 32-1103 Rivanna St 32-659 NCL Columbia 20 06/24/2008 U 

01102 Fayette St 0.06 32-1106 Andrew St 32-1103 Rivanna St 6 06/24/2008 U 

01103 Rivanna St 0.09 SR 6 Saint James St 32-1101 Tammany St 20 06/24/2008 U 

01103 Rivanna St 0.09 32-1101 Tammany St 32-1102 Fayette St 10 06/24/2008 U 



01104 Washington St 0.05 SR 6 Saint James St 32-1101 Cameron St 170 06/08/2005 P 

01104 Washington St 0.08 32-1101 Cameron St 32-1102 Fayette St 50 06/08/2005 P 

01105 K St 0.07 Dead End 32-1102 Fayette St 20 06/24/2008 U 

01106 Andrew St 0.16 SR 6 Saint James St 32-1102 Fayette St 10 06/24/2008 U 

01107 Leigh St 0.10 Dead End 32-667; 37-667 90 06/24/2008 U 

01108 Saint Patrick St 0.07 32-667 Old Columbia Rd; 32-1101 32-1102 Fayette St 30 06/24/2008 U 

01109 Tammany St 0.05 SR 6 Saint James St 32-1101 Tammany St 30 05/24/2008 P 

01301 Bird St 0.01 Dead End SR 6 Canal St 30 07/25/2005 P 

01302 Hardware Hills Circle 0.29 32-622 S, Ridge Spring Rd 32-622 N, Ridge Spring Rd 130 07/19/2005 P 

09143   0.11 32-649 E, Central Plains Rd 32-649 W, Central Plains Rd 870 08/21/2008 P 

09146   0.07 Fork Union Elem Sch US 15 James Madison Hwy 180 06/24/2008 P 

09147   0.01 32-649 Central Plains Rd 0.01 MN 32-649 Central Plains Rd 880 08/21/2008 P 

09147   0.14 0.01 MN 32-649 Central Plains Rd 0.15 MN 32-649 Central Plains Rd 410 08/21/2008 P 

09147   0.02 0.30 MN 32-649 Central Plains Rd Fluvanna High Sch 410 08/21/2008 P 

09147   0.15 0.15 MN 32-649 Central Plains Rd 0.30 MN 32-649 Central Plains Rd 270 08/21/2008 P 

09147   0.07 Fluvanna High Sch 32-649 Central Plains Rd 270 08/21/2008 P 

09148   0.07 32-608 Wilmington Rd Columbia Sch 130 08/21/2008 P 

09149   0.14 US 15 W, James Madison Hwy US 15 E, James Madison Hwy 1000 08/21/2008 P 

09150   0.12 US 15 James Madison Hwy Palmyra Elem Sch 120 08/21/2008 P 

09447   0.04 32-697 Cunningham Rd Cunningham Sch 200 08/21/2008 P 

  295.41      

        

       Denotes Roads Included in the Current Secondary Six Year Plan 

    

    



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 6  

 

UNPAVED ROADS IN FLUVANNA COUNTY 
 

 



FLUVANNA COUNTY ROADS 

Route 
Number Route Alias 

Link 
Length Start Label End Label AADT Data Date 

P or 
U 

00602 Greenwood Circle 0.33 32-605 S, Shannon Hill Rd 0.33 MN 32-605 Shannon Hill Rd 30 07/08/2008 U 

00602 Greenwood Circle 0.02 0.33 MN 32-605 Shannon Hill Rd 32-605 N, Shannon Hill Rd 20 07/08/2008 U 

00604 Covered Bridge Rd 0.60 Dead End 32-610 Community House Rd 9 07/17/2008 U 

00606 Hells Bend Rd 1.90 32-609 Hells Bend Rd 32-608 Wilmington Rd 50 07/09/2008 U 

00606 Rivanna Mills Rd 0.35 Dead End; Gap 32-609 Hells Bend Rd 30 06/24/2008 U 

00609 Hells Bend Rd 3.40 32-606 Hells Bend Rd; Rivanna Mills Rd 3.40 MN 32-606 20 06/24/2008 U 

00621 Lantre Lane 0.40 Dead End 32-611 Paynes Landing Rd 50 06/26/2008 U 

00624 Holmhead Circle 0.20 SR 6 E, East River Rd SR 6 MID 30 06/24/2008 U 

00635 Cannery Lane 0.52 Dead End US 15 James Madison Hwy 20 07/10/2008 U 

00636 Garden Lane 0.95 SR 53 Thomas Jefferson Pkwy Dead End 410 07/10/2008 U 

00644   0.30 US 15 N MID US 15 N, James Madison Hwy 4 07/08/2008 U 

00648 Turner Rd 0.90 32-649 Central Plains Rd 32-647 Shiloh Church Rd 20 07/10/2008 U 

00658 Lowfields Lane 0.12 Dead End 32-640 Shores Rd 40 06/26/2008 U 

00672 Carys Creek Rd 4.00 32-671 Gold Mine Rd US 15 James Madison Hwy 20 06/24/2008 U 

00674 Timber Rd 0.20 Goochland County Line 32-659 Stage Junction Rd 90 07/08/2008 U 

00674 Timber Rd 0.20 Dead End Goochland County Line 20 07/08/2008 U 

00675 Old Drivers Hill Rd 0.50 Dead End, Gap SR 6 E, West River Rd 120 06/26/2008 U 

00675 Canal St 0.05 SR 6 W, Main St Dead End, Gap 80 06/26/2008 U 

00677 Old Fork Lane 0.60 Dead End 32-640 Shores Rd 47 06/26/2008 U 

00679 Center B Rd 0.30 Dead End 32-643 Transco Rd 7 07/10/2008 U 

00680 Middle Fork Rd 1.20 32-639 Long Acre Rd Dead End 40 07/19/2005 U 

00687 Radicel Circle 0.16 32-646 Hardware Rd 32-646 Hardware Rd 60 06/26/2008 U 

00709 Martin Lane 0.25 Dead End 32-600 South Boston Rd 100 07/10/2008 U 

00714 Union Church Rd 0.15 Dead End 32-640 Shores Rd 60 06/26/2008 U 

00715 Stag Rd 0.15 32-694 Deer Lane Dead End 70 06/24/2008 U 

00716 Anderson Lane 0.15 Dead End 32-656 Bryants Ford Rd 40 06/24/2008 U 

00747 Two County Lane 0.10 US 250 Richmond Rd Louisa County Line 80 07/17/2008 U 

00759 White Hill Rd 0.60 US 250 Richmond Rd Dead End 90 07/15/2008 U 

01005 Church St 0.10 US 15; 32-1002 Dead End 10 07/08/2008 U 

01006 Saints Rest Lane 0.20 32-601 Courthouse Rd Dead End 20 07/08/2008 U 

01007 Stoneleigh Rd 0.80 US 15 James Madison Hwy 
32-601 Courthouse Rd; 32-663 Georges Mill 
Rd 70 07/08/2008 U 

01101 Tammany St 0.06 32-1109 Tammany St; Gap 32-1103 Rivanna St 20 06/24/2008 U 

01102 Fayette St 0.05 32-1105, K St 32-1104 Washington St 60 06/24/2008 U 

01102 Fayette St 0.20 32-659 NCL Columbia 32-1105, K St 40 06/24/2008 U 

01102 Fayette St 0.11 32-1104 Washington St 32-1108 Saint Patrick St 30 06/24/2008 U 

01102 Fayette St 0.06 32-1103 Rivanna St 32-659 NCL Columbia 20 06/24/2008 U 

01102 Fayette St 0.06 32-1106 Andrew St 32-1103 Rivanna St 6 06/24/2008 U 



01103 Rivanna St 0.09 SR 6 Saint James St 32-1101 Tammany St 20 06/24/2008 U 

01103 Rivanna St 0.09 32-1101 Tammany St 32-1102 Fayette St 10 06/24/2008 U 

01105 K St 0.07 Dead End 32-1102 Fayette St 20 06/24/2008 U 

01106 Andrew St 0.16 SR 6 Saint James St 32-1102 Fayette St 10 06/24/2008 U 

01107 Leigh St 0.10 Dead End 32-667; 37-667 90 06/24/2008 U 

01108 Saint Patrick St 0.07 32-667 Old Columbia Rd; 32-1101 32-1102 Fayette St 30 06/24/2008 U 

  20.82      

        

  Denotes Roads Included in the Current Secondary Six Year Plan 

    

    



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 7 

 

UNPAVED ROADS WITH 50 VPD OR GREATER 



FLUVANNA COUNTY SECONDARY UNPAVED ROADS WITH 50 
VPD OR GREATER 

Route 
Number Route Alias 

Link 
Length Start Label End Label AADT Data Date 

P or 
U 

00636 Garden Lane 0.95 SR 53 Thomas Jefferson Pkwy Dead End 410 07/10/2008 U 

00675 Old Drivers Hill Rd 0.50 Dead End, Gap SR 6 E, West River Rd 120 06/26/2008 U 

00709 Martin Lane 0.25 Dead End 32-600 South Boston Rd 100 07/10/2008 U 

00674 Timber Rd 0.20 Goochland County Line 32-659 Stage Junction Rd 90 07/08/2008 U 

00759 White Hill Rd 0.60 US 250 Richmond Rd Dead End 90 07/15/2008 U 

01107 Leigh St 0.10 Dead End 32-667; 37-667 90 06/24/2008 U 

00675 Canal St 0.05 SR 6 W, Main St Dead End, Gap 80 06/26/2008 U 

00747 Two County Lane 0.10 US 250 Richmond Rd Louisa County Line 80 07/17/2008 U 

00715 Stag Rd 0.15 32-694 Deer Lane Dead End 70 06/24/2008 U 

01007 Stoneleigh Rd 0.80 US 15 James Madison Hwy 
32-601 Courthouse Rd; 32-663 Georges Mill 
Rd 70 07/08/2008 U 

00687 Radicel Circle 0.16 32-646 Hardware Rd 32-646 Hardware Rd 60 06/26/2008 U 

00714 Union Church Rd 0.15 Dead End 32-640 Shores Rd 60 06/26/2008 U 

01102 Fayette St 0.05 32-1105, K St 32-1104 Washington St 60 06/24/2008 U 

00606 Hells Bend Rd 1.90 32-609 Hells Bend Rd 32-608 Wilmington Rd 50 07/09/2008 U 

00621 Lantre Lane 0.40 Dead End 32-611 Paynes Landing Rd 50 06/26/2008 U 

  6.36      

  

     Denotes Roads 
Included in the 
Current 
Secondary Six 
Year Plan     

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 8  

 

FEDERALLY QUALIFYING SECONDARY ROADS 
 

 

 

 

 

 



FLUVANNA COUNTY FEDERALLY ELIGIBLE SECONDARY ROADS 

Route 
Number Route Alias 

Link 
Length Start Label End Label AADT 

Data 
Date Status 

00600 South Boston Rd 1.60 32-618 Lake Monticello Rd 32-616 Union Mills Rd 6300 2009 PF 

00600 South Boston Rd 3.10 SR 53 Jefferson Pkwy 32-618 Lake Monticello Rd 4700 2009 PF 

00601 Courthouse Rd 0.55 US 15 James Madison Hwy 32-663; 32-1007 1300 2009 PF 

00601 Courthouse Rd 0.60 32-615 Carysbrook Rd 32-608 Rising Sun Rd; Wilmington Rd 1200 2009 PF 

00601 Courthouse Rd 3.06 32-663; 32-1007 32-615 Carysbrook Rd 700 2009 PF 

00607 Bybee Rd 0.30 Louisa County Line West 32-613 Bybees Church Rd 1600 2009 PF 

00612 Winnsville Dr 1.29 US 15 James Madison Hwy SR 6 West River Rd 1300 2009 PF 

00613 Bybees Church Rd 1.40 32-631 Hunters Lodge Rd; Dogwood Dr 32-607 Bybee Rd 1700 2009 PF 

00613 Bybees Church Rd 0.60 32-630 Hollands Rd 32-631 Hunters Lodge Rd; Dogwood Dr 1400 2009 PF 

00613 Bybees Church Rd 0.70 32-632 Ridge Rd 32-630 Hollands Rd 1100 2009 PF 

00616 Union Mills Rd 4.50 Albermarle County Line 
32-600 North Boston Rd; South Boston 
Road 3800 2009 PF 

00616 Union Mills Rd 2.30 
32-600 North Boston Rd; South Boston 
Road US 15 James Madison Hwy 2100 2009 PF 

00618 Lake Monticello Rd 4.03 SR 53 Thomas Jefferson Pkwy 32-600 Boston Road South 3000 2009 PF 

00620 Rolling Road South 4.60 32-639 Long Acre Rd Albemarle County Line 1300 2009 PF 

00620 Rolling Road South 2.72 SR 6, West River Rd 32-639 Long Acre Rd 910 2009 PF 

00637 Poplar Spring Rd 0.30 32-773 Pat Dennis Rd 32-773 The Cross Rd 1200 2009 PF 

00637 Antioch Rd 1.94 32-773 The Cross Rd 32-669 Kidds Dairy Rd 770 2009 PF 

00637 Poplar Spring Rd 0.19 SR 6 Canal St NCL Scottsville 750 2009 PF 

00637 Poplar Spring Rd 1.21 NCL Scottsville 32-773 Pat Dennis Rd 680 2009 PF 

00637 Antioch Rd 2.54 32-669 Kidds Dairy Rd 32-620 Rolling Rd 500 2009 PF 

00655 West Bottom Rd 0.70 32-654 Cloverdale Rd US 15 James Madison Hwy 690 2009 PF 

00655 West Bottom Rd 0.90 32-642 Spring Rd 32-654 Cloverdale Rd 390 2009 PF 

00659 Kents Store Way 3.72 32-601 W, Venable Rd Louisa County Line 860 2009 PF 

00659 Kents Store Way 0.08 32-601 E, Venable Rd 32-601 W, Venable Rd 720 2009 PF 

00659 Stage Junction Rd 0.23 SR 6 Saint James St NCL Columbia 520 2009 PF 

00659 
Cedar Lane Rd; Kent Store 
Rd 2.30 32-630 Plain Dealing Rd 32-601 E, Venable Rd 420 2009 PF 

00659 Cedar Lane Rd 2.50 32-608 Wilmington Rd 32-630 Plain Dealing Rd 230 2009 PF 

00690 Columbia Rd 0.20 Cumberland County Line SR 6; 32-667 570 2009 PF 

01001 Main St 0.19 US 15 S, James Madison Hwy 32-1003 Court Square 370 2009 PF 

  48.35      

  

     Denotes Roads 
Included in the Secondary 
Current Six Year Plan     

 

 

      



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 9 

 

PROJECTS TO ADD TO SECONDARY SIX YEAR PLAN IN 2011 UPDATE 
 

 



FLUVANNA COUNTY 

 PROJECT RECOMMENDATIONS TO ADD 

TO 

SECONDARY SIX YEAR PLAN 

IN 2011 UPDATE 

 

  
 

Route 636, Garden Lane, grade drain and stabilize existing unpaved road using the rural rustic 

method.  The current traffic count is 410 VPD 7/10/2008, which ranks it as the highest unpaved 

secondary road in Fluvanna County.  This project was dropped from the Secondary Six Year 

Plan in 2005 due to budget constraints.  The addition of this project is necessary since Route 

635 Cannery Lane no longer qualifies for unpaved road funds according to Code Section 33.1-

70.01. 

 

Route 675, Old Drivers Hill Road, grade drain and stabilize existing unpaved road using the 

rural rustic method.  The current traffic count is 120 VPD 6/26/2008, which ranks it as the 

second highest unpaved secondary road in Fluvanna County.  This project was dropped from the 

Secondary Six Year Plan in 2002 due to budget constraints.  The addition of this project is 

necessary since Route 635 Cannery Lane no longer qualifies for unpaved road funds according 

to Code Section 33.1-70.01. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 10 

 

PROJECTS TO CONSIDER AT FUTURE UPDATES AS FUNDING 

ALLOWS 



FLUVANNA COUNTY - FUTURE SECONDARY PROJECT LIST AS FUNDING ALLOWS (2011-2017) 

ROUTE NAME FROM TO 
LENGTH / 

MI T.C. DESCRIPTION COMMENT 

*629 DEEP CREEK ROAD 0.08 ME RTE 631 0.28 ME RTE 631 0.20 
160 VPD 
7/17/2008 

BRIDGE AND APPR. 
OVER MIDDLE FORK 

KENTS BRANCH 

SUFF. RATING 21.1  
POSTED 11 TON      

UPC 59213  

*639 LONG ACRE ROAD 1.15 MW RTE 640 1.35 MW RTE 640 0.20 
440 VPD 
7/10/2008 

BRIDGE AND APPR. 
OVER SOUTH FORK 

CUNNINGHAM CREEK 

SUFF. RATING 48.1  
POSTED 15 TON    

UPC  51924 

652 ACADEMY ROAD 0.66 ME RTE 15 0.86 ME RTE 15 0.20 
290 VPD 
6/01/2005 

BRIDGE AND 
APPROACH OVER 

NORTH CREEK 

SUFF. RATING 44.3  
POSTED 12 TON  

*759 WHITE HALL ROAD 0.20 MN RTE 250 0.40 MN RTE 250 0.20 
90 VPD   

7/15/2008 

BRIDGE AND 
APPROACH OVER 
MECHUNK CREEK 

SUFF. RATING 40.7  
POSTED 12 TON    

UPC 59212 

*600 PAYNES MILL ROAD RTE 250 RTE 633 2.73 
1100 VPD      

2009 
MINOR WIDENING UPC 90429 

*633 
NORTH BOSTON 

ROAD 
RTE 600 RTE 631 1.98 

1500 VPD   
7/15/2008 

MINOR WIDENING UPC 90430 

*600 PAYNES MILL ROAD RTE 633 RTE 616 1.03 
750 VPD   
7/15/2008 

MINOR WIDENING UPC 90431 

*600 
SOUTH BOSTON 

ROAD 
RTE 616 

R. ELLIS HANNUM 
BRIDGE 

1.37 
6300 VPD      

2009 
MINOR WIDENING UPC 90432 

*631 TROY ROAD RTE 250 RTE 15 2.72 
1500 VPD      

2009 
MINOR WIDENING UPC 90433 

*636 GARDEN LANE RTE 53 
END OF STATE 
MAINTENANCE 

0.95 
410 VPD   
7/10/2008 

PAVE DIRT ROAD 

HIGHEST TRAF. COUNT 
OF ANY UNPAVED ROAD 

IN FLUV. CTY. (UPC 
57223) 

*675 
OLD DRIVERS HILL 

ROAD 
RTE 6 

END OF STATE 
MAINTENANCE 

0.50 
120 VPD   
6/26/2008 

PAVE DIRT ROAD UPC 11192 

*606 HELLS BEND ROAD RTE 608 RTE 609 1.90 
50 VPD   

7/09/2008 
PAVE DIRT ROAD UPC 8249 

*759 WHITE HALL ROAD RTE 250 
END OF STATE 
MAINTENANCE 

0.60 
90 VPD   

7/15/2008 
PAVE DIRT ROAD UPC 59212 

*1007 STONELEIGH ROAD RTE 15 RTE 601 0.68 
70 VPD   

7/08/2008 
PAVE DIRT ROAD UPC 18031 

This list of projects is intended to be a permanent record of projects dropped from the official Secondary Six Year Plan due to budget constraints and 
potential future projects to be added back to the plan when funding allows.  Those priorities marked with an asterisk represent projects that were removed 
from the Secondary Six Year Plan with previous updates. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 11 

 

UNPAVED ROAD IMPROVEMENT OPTIONS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Unpaved Road Improvement Program Options 

 Unpaved Road Pave-In-Place Rural Rustic Road 

Roadway Status 
The road must already be a state maintained road in the secondary system of 

state highways. These programs do not apply to the addition and improvement 

of roads that are privately maintained. 

Traffic Volume 
VPD = vehicles per day 
Limitations are based on 

funding (see below). 

50 vpd minimum for 

unpaved road funds, 

otherwise no minimum for 

normal secondary 

construction funding. 

less than 750 vpd less than 1500 vpd 

County 

Government 

Action and Funding 

Project must be in the 

County’s Secondary Six-

Year Plan (SSYP) of 

improvements. 

Project must be in the 

County’s Secondary Six-

Year Plan (SSYP) of 

improvements. 

Project must be in the County’s 

Secondary Six-Year Plan (SSYP) 

of improvements.  Board must 

also request the Rural Rustic 

Road Program be used, by 

passing a special resolution 

declaring the road a “Rural 

Rustic Road.” 

Land Use  

Growth Factor 
No restrictions. No restrictions. 

The County Board indicates 

growth and traffic generated 

by the land are not expected 

to increase significantly over 

the next 10 years. 

Safety 
Safety factors are 

addressed as part of the 

project. 

Safety factors are 

addressed as part of the 

project. 

Specific identified safety issues 

that cannot be addresses 

through signing should be 

corrected. 

Alignment 
Reconstruct as necessary to 

improve alignment and 

grade. 

Minor changes in 

alignment may be 

necessary to address 

issues. 

Ideally, a candidate road can be 

paved without alignment 

improvements.  For higher 

traffic volume roads (>400 

VPD), 18 foot pavement is 

desirable and some typical 

section improvements may be 

necessary. 

Drainage 
Roadway drainage will be 

improved, if needed. 

Roadway drainage will 

be improved, if needed. 

Existing drainage provisions 

should be sufficient with 

minimal improvement.  

Improvements should be 

made as necessary to ensure 

positive drainage. 

Right of Way 

Abutting property owners 

will need to provide 

additional right of way, 

normally 50 feet in width. 

Paving may be done 

within the existing right 

of way, but abutting 

property owners are 

normally expected to 

donate additional right-

of-way for spot widening, 

if necessary for safety. 

Paving may be done within 

the existing right of way, 

which may be a minimum of 

30 feet prescriptive R/W. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 12 

 

CODE OF VA. SECTION 33.1-70.01 –SIX YR. 

PLAN/BUDGET PROCESS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



§ 33.1-70.01.  Annual meeting with county officers; six-year plan for secondary 

highways; certain reimbursements required. 

 

The governing body of each county in the secondary system may, jointly with the 

resident engineer for the Department of Transportation or other representatives of the 

Department as designated by the Commonwealth Transportation Commissioner, prepare 

a six-year plan for the improvements to the secondary highway system in that county.  

Each such six-year plan shall be based upon the best estimate of funds to be available to 

the county for expenditure in the six-year period on the secondary highway system.  Each 

such plan shall list the proposed improvements, together with an estimated cost of each 

project so listed.  Following the preparation of the plan, the board of supervisors or other 

governing body shall conduct a public hearing after publishing notice in a newspaper 

published in or having general circulation in the county once a week for two successive 

weeks, and posting notice of the proposed hearing at the front door of the courthouse of 

such county ten days before such meeting.  At the public hearings, which shall be 

conducted jointly by the board of supervisors and the representative of the Department of 

Transportation, the entire six-year plan shall be discussed with the citizens of the county 

and their views considered.  Following such discussion, the governing body, together 

with the representative of the Department of Transportation, shall finalize and officially 

adopt the six-year plan which shall then be considered the official plan of the county. 

 

At least once in each calendar year representatives of the Department of Transportation in 

charge of the secondary system of highways in each county, or some representative of the 

Department designated by the Commonwealth Transportation Commissioner, shall meet 

with the governing body of each county in a regular or special meeting of such governing 

body for the purpose of preparing a budget for the expenditure of improvement funds for 

the next fiscal year.  The representative of the Department of Transportation shall furnish 

the governing body with an updated estimate of funds and the board and the 

representative of the Department of Transportation shall jointly prepare the list of 

projects to be carried out in that fiscal year taken from the six-year plan by order of 

priority, and following generally the policies of the Commonwealth Transportation Board 

in regard to the statewide secondary highway system improvements.  Such list of 

priorities shall then be presented at a public hearing duly advertised in accordance with 

the procedure hereinbefore outlined, and comments of citizens shall be obtained and 

considered.  Following this public hearing, the board, with the concurrence of the 

representative of the Department of Transportation, shall adopt, as official, a priority 

program for the ensuing year, and the Department of Transportation shall include such 

listed projects in its secondary highways budget for the county for that year. 

 

At least once every two years, following the adoption of the original six-year plan, the 

governing body of each county, together with the representative of the Department of 

Transportation, shall update the six-year plan of such county by adding to it and 

extending it as necessary so as to maintain it as a plan encompassing six years.  

Whenever additional funds for secondary highway purposes become available, the 

governing body may request a revision in such six-year plan in order that such plan be 

amended to provide for the expenditure of such additional funds.  Such additions and 

extensions to each six-year plan shall be prepared in the same manner and following the 

same procedures as outlined herein for its initial preparation.  Where the governing body 

and the resident engineer or other representative of the Department of Transportation fail 



to agree upon a priority program, the governing body may appeal to the Commonwealth 

Transportation Commissioner.  The Commissioner shall consider all proposed priorities 

and render a decision establishing a priority program based upon a consideration by the 

Commissioner of the welfare and safety of county citizens.  Such decision shall be 

binding. 

 

Nothing in this section shall preclude a governing body, with the concurrence of the 

representative of the Department of Transportation, from combining the public hearing 

required for revision of a six-year plan with the public hearing required for review of the 

list of priorities, provided that notice of such combined hearing is published in 

accordance with procedures provided in this section. 

 

All such six-year plans shall consider all existing highways in the secondary highway 

system, including those in the towns located in the county that are maintained as a part of 

the state secondary highway system, and shall be made a public document. 

 

If any county cancels any highway construction or improvement project included in its 

six-year plan after the Commonwealth Transportation Board has adopted the location and 

design for the project, such county shall reimburse the Board the net amount of all funds 

expended by the Board for planning, engineering, right-of-way acquisition, demolition, 

relocation, and construction between the date on which project development was initiated 

and the date of cancellation.  To the extent that funds from secondary road allocations 

pursuant to § 33.1-23.4 </cgi-bin/legp504.exe?000+cod+33.1-23.4> have been expended 

to pay for a highway construction or improvement project, all revenues generated from a 

reimbursement by the county shall be deposited into that same county’s secondary 

allocation.  The board may waive all or any portion of such reimbursement at its 

discretion. 

 

The provisions of this section shall not apply in instances where less than 100 percent of 

the right-of-way is available for donation for unpaved road improvements. 

 

For purposes of this section, “cancellation” means complete elimination of a highway 

construction or improvement project from the six-year plan. 

 

(Code 1950, § 33.1-70; 1970, c. 322; 1977, c. 578; 1979, c. 64; 1981, c. 240; 1993, c. 

802; 2001, cc. 105, 130.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 13 
 

BLANK PETITION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



       ________________________  

         Date 

 

TO:  Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna County and 

         Virginia Department of Transportation 

 

 

We the undersigned property owners request that Route ________________, between 

______________________and______________________ in the ________________ 

District, be placed on the Six Year Plan for improvements and pavement.   

WE agree to donate 50 feet Right of Way for the construction of said route, the same to 

be measured 25 feet on each side of the centerline of the roadway to be constructed. 

Note:  This document is for the purpose of surveying only and is not a legally binding 

commitment. 

 

  SIGNATURES     DATE 

 

________________________________   ____________________ 

________________________________   ____________________ 

________________________________   ____________________ 

________________________________   ____________________ 

________________________________   ____________________ 

________________________________   ____________________ 

________________________________   ____________________ 

________________________________   ____________________ 

________________________________   ____________________ 

________________________________   ____________________ 

________________________________   ____________________ 

________________________________   ____________________ 

________________________________   ____________________ 

________________________________   ____________________ 

________________________________   ____________________ 

________________________________   ____________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 14 
 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

If you desire any more information in reference to the 

secondary system six-year program please feel free to 

contact the following VDOT personnel: 
 

 

 

 

Brent Sprinkel, P. E. 
District Preliminary Engineering Manager 

 

Or 

 

Karen P. Kilby 
Programming and Investment Manager 

 

 

1601 Orange Road 

Culpeper, Virginia 22701 

 

Phone:  1-540-829-7500 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

TAB 15 
 

GENERAL HIGHWAY MAP WITH F.Y. 2010-2011 
PROJECTS PRIORITIZED BY NUMBER 

(PLEASE SEE MAP) 
 

 

 

























































































































































   

  
  
  

  
  
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

To: Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors   From: Matt Weaver 
Case Number: SUP 11:02     District: Columbia 
Tax Map: Tax Map 12, Section 4, Parcels B1  Date:  April 20, 2011 
 
General Information:      This request is to be heard by the Board of Supervisors on 

Wednesday, April 20, 2011 at 7:00 pm in the Circuit Court Room 
in the Courts Building.   

 
Owner/Applicant:  Otis Collier 
  
Representative:                Otis Collier 
 
Requested Action:  Request for special use permit to allow for a small home industry 

with respect to 1.76 acres of Tax Map 12, Section 4, Parcel B1. 
The applicant is proposing to conduct a small business to include 
automobile refurbishment, small engine repair, and furniture 
repair. (Attachment A)  

 
Location: The affected property is located in the Columbia District along 

Hollands Road (Route 630), approximately 0.65 miles south of 
Bybees Church Road (Route 613). 

 
Existing Zoning:  A-1, Agricultural, General 
 
Planning Area:  Rural Residential Planning Area 
 
Existing Land Use:  The parcel is approximately 1.76 acres in size with the primary 

residence located along Hollands Road (Route 630) and the shop 
building located behind the primary dwelling. See attached sketch 
plan (Attachment B) and aerial map (Attachment C) 

 
Adjacent Land Use:  The surrounding area is zoned A-1, Agricultural, General.  
 
Zoning History: The subject property was originally part of a larger lot that was 

subdivided in December 1973 to its current 1.76 acres, making it 
legally non-conforming.  

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA

“Responsive & Responsible Government”

  

P.O. Box 540 Palmyra, VA 22963 (434) 591-1910 FAX (434) 591-1911 www.co.fluvanna.va.us 

1



   

Neighborhood Meeting: 
 
At the February 9, 2011 neighborhood meeting, four people spoke with regard to this 
application. Participants of the meeting expressed concerns pertaining to the traffic generated by 
this use along Hollands Road, noise from the use, and the excess sand generated by sandblasting 
crossing the property boundary. See Attachment D for a complete list of comments obtained 
during the February 9th meeting.   
 
Technical Review Committee: 
 
At the February 10, 2011 Technical Review Committee meeting, the Health Department stated, 
it would not require any improvements for the existing garage due to its close proximity to the 
primary residence.  
 
The Virginia Department of Transportation commented, it would not require any additional 
entrance improvements as the twenty (20) foot entrance clearance was adequate when it was 
approved prior to 2003. If the volume of cars increases or larger trucks are brought through the 
entrance then an upgrade may be required. 
 
Dr. Sam Babbitt, Planning Commission representative, inquired about small engine debris 
pertaining to the possible abandonment of excess parts or machines. The representative 
mentioned a possible condition for the SUP limiting automotive or equipment debris from this 
proposed activity. 
 
The full list of Technical Review Committee comments is attached to this staff report 
(Attachment E). 
 
Comprehensive Plan:   
  
VISION 2009 
The vision for Fluvanna County is based on key goals such as “preserving the rural character, 
promote economic development and protect individual property rights”. Protecting and 
preserving the rural character is essential as was expressed by Fluvanna citizens throughout the 
comprehensive planning process (see Appendix A in the Comprehensive Plan under the “2006 
Planning Issues Survey”). 

 
Analysis: 
 

The applicant is proposing to operate a small business to include automobile refurbishment, 
small engine repair, and furniture repair. This business will employ one part-time employee, and 
according to the applicant, will refurbish one car about every two years. The applicant is not 
proposing any additional buildings to be built as this proposed use will take place in the garage 
located behind the primary dwelling and the small asphalt area directly adjacent to the garage 
(Attachment B).  
 
In the past, sandblasting occurred behind the garage near the property line and was a major 
concern of the neighbor sharing this property boundary. The applicant states that he has 

2



   

discontinued this use and there will be no more sandblasting on the property unless it is inside 
the enclosed sandblasting chamber that is located within the garage. There will be no 
sandblasting outside of the garage. Please see Attachment F for the correspondence with the 
Department of Environmental Quality regarding the environmental impacts of sandblasting.  
 
VDOT has stated that the existing entrance is sufficient for the volume of traffic coming into and 
out of the property. The volume of work should not significantly increase from the current 
volume, as the proposed uses for this SUP mirror the existing activities on the property.  
 
When evaluating proposed uses for a special use permit, in addition to analyzing the potential 
adverse impacts of the use, staff utilizes two (2) general guidelines for evaluation as set forth in 
the zoning ordinance. 
 
First, the proposed use should not tend to change the character and established pattern of 
the area or community. 
 
The lot is legally non-conforming in its current state due to the acreage of the property. The 
intensified use of operating the proposed small home industry on the property poses a risk of 
encroaching on the neighbors (i.e., noise, dust, vibration, etc.). The applicant is proposing to 
confine the activity to within the garage and on the adjacent pad area directly in front of the 
garage doors. Additionally, if approved, the property must not collect debris from the proposed 
uses; excess vehicles, furniture remnants, scrap wood, small engine parts, or similarly associated 
materials.    
 
Second, the proposed use should be compatible with the uses permitted by-right in that 
zoning district and shall not adversely affect the use/or value of neighboring property.  
 
Small home industries and automobile repair service establishments are allowed by SUP in the 
A-1 district. By-right uses that are similar, in operation or size of structures, to this application 
may include home occupations, equestrian facilities, farm sales, non-commercial greenhouses, 
and accessory dwellings. The zoning ordinance allows for one accessory dwelling unit per 
subject property, similar to locating the garage behind the primary dwelling. In general, small 
home industries differ from home occupations in that non-family employees can be hired and the 
business may take up more than 25% of the gross floor area of the dwelling.  
 
Sec. 22-1-2 of the zoning ordinance states that the purpose of the zoning ordinance is “to protect 
against over crowding of land”. The activities proposed for this application are considered 
intensive for a small property such as the subject parcel, which is 1.76 acres in size and currently 
contains two large buildings and several smaller structures. Furthermore, the zoning ordinance 
states its purpose is to “facilitate the creation of a convenient, attractive and harmonious 
community” requiring the upkeep of the property, free from debris. Confining the activities to 
within the enclosed garage or on the asphalt pad directly in front of the garage should limit the 
impacts from dust, debris, vibration, and noise on the adjoining neighbors. Additionally, the 
zoning ordinance states its purpose as “encouraging economic development activities”. The 
applicant is applying to provide a service to the community by refurbishing automobiles and 
repairing small engines.  

3



   

Planning Commission: 
The Planning Commission discussed this SUP on March 23, 2011 at its regular meeting. Two 
citizens spoke in favor of this application and four citizens spoke in opposition. The citizens 
were concerned with the previous sandblasting activity, traffic, and the appearance of the 
property. Concerns raised by the Planning Commission pertained to the general order of the lot, 
if the proposed use could become a junkyard, whether this activity is suited for a more industrial 
area, if work on the asphalt pad would disturb the neighbors, and the indoor confinement of the 
sand blasting activity.  
 
The Commission discussed these items and concluded that granting the SUP would allow the 
County to have more control to regulate the above issues and the use. The Planning Commission 
added condition number ten, requiring screening of the use from the road or adjacent properties, 
then voted to approve this SUP 6-0. 
 
Conclusion: 

 
The Board of Supervisors should consider any potential adverse impacts, such as traffic entering 
and exiting the property, noise, dust, vibration, or visual clutter. The parcel is legally non-
conforming due to its smaller size. No new buildings or entrances are to be built with this 
application.  
 
Recommended Conditions 
 
If approved Staff recommends the following conditions:  
 

1. Prior to development of the site, a site development plan that meets the requirements of 
the Fluvanna County Zoning Ordinance, must be submitted for review and approval. 

2. The site must meet all Virginia Department of Transportation requirements. 
3. The site must meet the requirements set forth by the Virginia Department of Health.  
4. All activity related to this small home industry application, will be confined within the 

garage or on the asphalt pad directly in front of the garage doors.  
5. No sandblasting will take place outside of the confined sandblasting chamber that is 

located within the garage.   
6. The hours of operation shall be from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday – Saturday. 
7. The property shall be maintained in a neat and orderly manner so that the visual 

appearance from the road and adjacent properties is acceptable to County officials.  
8. The Board of Supervisors, or representative, reserves the right to inspect the business for 

compliance with these conditions at any time.   
9. Under Sec. 22-17-4 F (2) of the Fluvanna County Code, the Board of Supervisors has the 

authority to revoke a Special Use Permit if the property owner has substantially breached 
the conditions of the Special Use Permit.  

10. Proposed use shall be screened from neighboring properties and adjacent public roads to 
the reasonable satisfaction of the Zoning Administrator. 

 
 

4



   

Suggested Motion: 
 

I move that the Board of Supervisors approve/deny SUP 11:02, a special use permit request to 
allow for a small home industry with respect to 1.76 acres of Tax Map 12, Section 4, Parcel B1, 
[if approved] subject to the conditions listed in the staff report. 
 
Attachments: 
 
A – Application & APO Letter 
B – Sketch Plan 
C – Aerial Vicinity Map 
D –Neighborhood Meeting Notes 
E – TRC Comment Letter 
F – Department of Environmental Quality Correspondence 
G – Pictures provided by neighbor 
 
Copy:   
Applicant – Otis Collier, 1380 Hollands Road, Palmyra, VA, 22963     
APO – Dr. Steven & Dr. Kathleen Fletcher, 1379 Hollands Road, Palmyra, VA 23963 
APO – Hazel Staton, 1314 Hollands Road, Palmyra, VA 23963 
File 

5



6

Attachment A



7



8



 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Area Property Owners and Residents 

FROM: Darren Coffey, Director of Community Development 

DATE:  February 2, 2011 

SUBJECT: Neighborhood Meeting – February 9, 2011 – 4:30 P.M. 

 

The following meetings have been scheduled to consider this request: 

 
SUP 11:01 – Verizon Wireless – Construct Telecommunications Tower  – A request for a special use permit to allow for a 

125 foot wireless communications tower with respect to 114.71 acres of Tax Map 30, Section A, Parcel 104.  The property 

is zoned A-1 and is located 0.6 miles east of James Madison Highway (Route 15) at the intersection of Georges Mill Road 

(Route 663) and Courthouse Road (Route 601).  The property is located in the Columbia Election District and is within the 

Rural Residential Planning Area. 

 

SUP 11:02 – Otis & Pam Collier – A request for a special use permit to operate a small home industry with respect to 

1.76 acres of Tax Map 12, Section 4, Parcel B1.  The applicant is proposing to operate a small business to include 

automobile refurbishment, small engine repair, and furniture repair.  The property is currently zoned A-1 and is located on 

Hollands Road (Route 630), approximately .65 miles east of Bybees Road (Route 613).  The property is located in the 

Columbia Election District and is within the Rural Residential Planning Area. 

 

Neighborhood Meeting:  The Neighborhood Meeting is scheduled for                                                

Wednesday, February 9, 2011 beginning at 4:30 p.m. at the County Administrative Building’s Morris 

Room (former Board Room) – Main Level.  This is an informal meeting that will give the applicant the 

opportunity to present his/her plan, and residents the opportunity to ask questions and express their views 

regarding the application prior to the Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors public hearings. 

 

Technical Review Committee:  This Committee Meeting is scheduled for Thursday, February 10, 2011 

from 10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. in the Historical Court House of Fluvanna County.  The Committee will 

review the application and send a recommendation to the Planning Commission. 

 

Fluvanna County Planning Commission Public Hearing:  The Planning Commission’s Public Hearing 

is scheduled for Wednesday, March 23, 2011, at 7:00 PM in the Circuit Court Room – Main Level of the 

Fluvanna County Courts Building.  The Planning Commission will hold a public hearing and forward a 

recommendation to the Board of Supervisors.  There will be an opportunity for public comment. 

 

Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors Public Hearing:  The Fluvanna County Board of Supervisor’s 

Public Hearing is tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, April 20, 2011, at 7:00 PM in the Circuit Court 

Room – Main Level of the Fluvanna County Courts Building.  A notice will be sent to adjacent property 

owners when the meeting is confirmed. 

 

If you have further questions or need additional information, please contact the Fluvanna County Planning 

& Community Development Department at (434) 591-1910. 

 

YOUR NEIGHBORS MAY NOT HAVE RECEIVED THIS MAILING. 

PLEASE SHARE THIS INFORMATION. 

P.O. Box 540 Palmyra, VA 22963 (434) 591-1910 FAX (434) 591-1911 www.co.fluvanna.va.us 

“Responsive & Responsible Government” 

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA  
 

9



10



11

Attachment B



DOGWOOD DR

BYBEES CHURCH RD

RI
DG

E 
RD

HOLLANDS RD

HUNTERS LODGE RD

KESTREL LN

TROY HEIGHTS LN

FO
X R

IDGE L
N

BYBEE FARMS LN

BLUE RIDGE VIEW LN

FRAZIER COVE LN

BEECHWOOD LN

RICHARDSON LN

Roads

Subject Parcel Boundary

0 0.02 0.04 0.06 0.080.01
Miles

SUP 11:02 Automotive Restoration & Small Engine Repair

A
tta

c
h
m

e
n
t C1

2



13

Attachment D



  
  
  

  
  

 
February 10, 2011 

Otis Collier 
1380 Hollands Road 
Palmyra, VA 22963 
 
Delivered via mail 
 
Re: SUP 11:02 – Small Home Industry - TRC Comments 
 
Dear Applicant: 
 

The following comments are the result of the Technical Review Committee meeting.   
 

1. Fire Chief and Erosion & Sediment Administrator had no comments for this application. 
 

2. Virginia Department of Health commented that it would not require any improvements for the 
existing garage due to its close proximity to the primary residence.  

 

3. Virginia Department of Transportation stated that it would not require any additional entrance 
improvements as the twenty (20) foot entrance clearance was adequate when it was approved prior 
to 2003. If the volume of cars increases or larger trucks are brought through the entrance than an 
upgrade may be required.  

 

4. The Planning Commission representative, inquired about small engine debris pertaining to the 
possible abandonment of excess parts or machines. The representative mentioned a possible 
condition for the SUP limiting automotive or equipment debris from this proposed activity. 

 

Please provide any other materials or documentation that is to be included in the Planning Commission 
packet by Friday, February 25, 2011. Currently, there are 7 sketch plans of the proposed uses on file 
therefore you only need to submit 15 additional copies. These copies will be given to the Planning 
Commission and the Board of Supervisors. Submitting revisions by this deadline will place your request 
on the March 23, 2011 Planning Commission agenda.   
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me at 434-591-1910.    
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Matt Weaver 
Planner 
Dept. of Planning & Community Development 
 
Cc: file 

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA

“Responsive & Responsible Government”

  

P.O. Box 540 Palmyra, VA 22963 (434) 591-1910 FAX (434) 591-1911 www.co.fluvanna.va.us 

14

Attachment E



15

Attachment F



16



17



1
8

A
tta

c
h

m
e
n

t G



1
9



  
  
  

  
  
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

To: Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors    From: Matt Weaver 
Case Number: ZTA 11:01                 Date: April 20, 2011 
 
General Information:      This request is to be heard by the Board of Supervisors on 

Wednesday, April 20, 2011 at 7:00 pm in the Circuit Courtroom in 
the Courts Building.   

 
Applicant/Representative: Fluvanna County 
 
Requested Action:  A request to amend portions of the Fluvanna County Subdivision 

Ordinance to require sidewalks in commercial and industrial areas 
but allow for a sidewalk variation (Sec. 19-8-8 Sidewalks; Sec. 19-
8-8.1 Sidewalk Variation).   

 
A request to amend portions of the Fluvanna County Zoning 
Ordinance to require sidewalks in commercial and industrial areas 
but allow for a sidewalk variation (Sec. 22-9-10 Sidewalks; Sec. 
22-10-13 Sidewalks; Sec. 22-11-11 Sidewalks; Sec. 22-12-11 
Sidewalks; Sec. 22-23-6 Site plan content; Sec. 22-23-7 Additional 
Improvements and Standards for Major Site Plans).   
 
A request to amend portions of the Fluvanna County Zoning 
Ordinance to establish a setback variation for commercial areas 
(Sec. 22-9-5 Setback regulations; Sec. 22-10-7 Setback 
regulations; Sec. 22-23-6 Site plan content).   

 
Location: Commercial and Industrial zoned properties 
 
Zoning History:  None 
 
Technical Review Committee: 
 
This item was distributed to the Technical Review Committee on March 2, 2011. The Virginia 
Department of Transportation representative stated that if sidewalks were built to VDOT 
specifications then he agreed with the zoning text change. VDOT also supported sidewalks in 
subdivisions (See Attachment B for correspondence).  
 

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA

“Responsive & Responsible Government”

  

P.O. Box 540 Palmyra, VA 22963 (434) 591-1910 FAX (434) 591-1911 www.co.fluvanna.va.us 

1



 

Comprehensive Plan: 
 
SIDEWALKS 
 
Land Use 
With current retail development around Lake Monticello and future regional mixed-use 
development in Zion Crossroads, sidewalks will provide an integral function in providing 
connectivity. The Community Elements section of the Land Use chapter features the Northwest 
Fluvanna/ Southwest Louisa Multimodal Corridor Study which “identifies a preferred 
development scenario for Fluvanna County that focuses growth within and around existing 
centers using a model of walkable mixed-use centers.” The Pattern of Development section of 
the Land Use chapter states “Zoning applications for residential, commercial, or industrial 
development should be well planned and integrated with the future vision of that area. Critical 
items include buffers and screening…, connectivity and walkability, adequate infrastructure … 
and result in fiscally responsible and value-added development for the community.” Sidewalks 
would not be ideal in rural areas of the county however, providing pedestrian access around 
storefronts and within commercial districts would increase connectivity, walkability and promote 
the goals of the Land Use chapter.  
 
Community Design 
A strategy for implementation from the Community Design chapter, reads, “Review and amend 
the codes. Since many existing codes and regulations get in the way of creating walkable mixed-
use neighborhoods, attracting investment often requires reworking the codes to make it easier to 
achieve the desired goals.” Amending the ordinances to require sidewalks in commercial and 
industrial areas fulfills this strategy.  
 
Transportation 
“Locally, alternative transportation systems include greenway trails, bicycle lanes, and 
sidewalks. The expansion of these networks is accomplished primarily through the development 
process and is recognized as a benefit to the community as a result of well-planned and -
coordinated projects.”  These statements are a part of the transportation vision of Fluvanna 
County. Creating alternative transportation options helps to fulfill the County vision of 
sustainability while also promoting increased recreation, economic development and 
connectivity opportunities.  
 
Below is an implementation strategy for the transportation section of the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Goal 3:  To improve pedestrian and bicycle access to roads and provide off-road trails and 

walkways.  
 

Implementation Strategies 
 
1. Require the development of alternative transportation infrastructure such as sidewalks and 

trails in new major subdivisions, and sidewalks in commercial areas.  Multiuse trails do not 
necessarily need to parallel existing roadways, but should link neighborhoods and 
commercial centers, particularly within the planning areas. 

2



SETBACKS 
 
Land Use 
 
The Regional Centers section of the Land Use chapter states “setbacks should be minimized, 
with no setback along primary streets, particularly those with retail uses.” Similarly, the 
Neighborhood Mixed-Use section states “setbacks should be minimized, with no setback along 
areas serving as Main Street.” For both development patterns, as well as, storefronts in 
Neighborhood Residential and Village scaled developments, minimizing the setbacks along 
commercial streets allows for a more appealing pedestrian environment and allows for increased 
connectivity.  
 
Community Design 
“Fluvanna County’s vision is to be the most livable and sustainable community in the United 
States.” This statement comes from the Community Design chapter and is followed by ways to 
accomplish this vision such as, “In order to create a more functional and appealing pedestrian 
environment, parking should be less dominant from the street. This means parking should be 
relegated to the back or sides of buildings, or within structures.” Relegating parking helps to 
define a space for pedestrians and increases the aesthetic appearance of the commercial area.  
 
“The streetscape – a combination of building facades, sidewalks, benches, lighting, trees, and 
other characteristics – influences the character of the surrounding urban environment to a great 
extent. Well-designed streetscapes focus on creating pedestrian-friendly environments and are 
essential to community preservation.” Creating an appealing atmosphere for people to travel, as 
well as congregate, can help promote community pride and add to the quality of life for residents 
and visitors. These pedestrian-friendly environments are created when the parking is relegated to 
the rear or side of buildings, and setbacks are reduced along street frontage.  
 
Analysis: 
 
The Applicant is proposing to amend the Fluvanna County subdivision ordinance (Sec. 19-8-8 
Sidewalks; Sec. 19-8-8.1 Sidewalk Variation) and the zoning ordinance (Sec. 22-9-5 Setback 
regulations; Sec. 22-9-10 Sidewalks; Sec. 22-10-7 Setback regulations; Sec. 22-10-13 
Sidewalks; Sec. 22-11-11 Sidewalks; Sec. 22-12-11 Sidewalks; Sec. 22-23-6 Site plan content; 
Sec. 22-23-7 Additional Improvements and Standards for Major Site Plans) to further align these 
ordinances with the vision, goals, and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Below is a brief overview of the proposed changes. Please see Attachment D & E for the detailed 
proposed ordinance changes.   
 
SIDEWALKS 
This proposed subdivision and zoning ordinance change would require new commercial or 
industrial development to build sidewalks that comply with VDOT specifications along road 
frontage. The current Fluvanna County subdivision ordinance does not require sidewalks in 
commercial or industrial zoned areas. The lack of pedestrian walkways discourages persons from 
walking to and within commercial shopping centers, and exacerbates the County’s dependence 
on the automobile. Amending the sidewalk ordinance will help improve the connectivity within 

3



 

commercial properties and ensure pedestrian access to and from adjacent residential areas, 
schools, commercial areas or open spaces. 
 
Additionally, this proposal provides a process for applicants to apply for a variation to the 
sidewalk regulations that may be granted by the Planning Commission (Sec. 19-8-8.1 Sidewalk 
Variation). For example, creating a trail network or greenway providing sufficient pedestrian 
circulation would be acceptable in lieu of a sidewalk on an industrial property.  
 
Sidewalks are currently required for all major subdivisions within the R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4 and R-
10 zoning districts (Sec. 19-8-8). Requiring sidewalks to be built in commercial and industrial 
properties will increase pedestrian accessibility and walkability throughout the county. This 
provides alternative transportation opportunities and can reduce dependency on the automobile.  
 
SETBACKS  
This ZTA proposal also provides a setback variation (Sec. 22-9-5 Setback regulations & Sec. 22-
10-7 Setback regulations) allowing buildings to be built closer to the road and relegating parking 
to the rear, or side, of the building. Locating buildings closer to roads can increase the overall 
aesthetic value of a commercial development while providing safer pedestrian and bicycle 
accommodations. Relegating parking can help create an appealing atmosphere for walking or 
gathering, thus increasing foot traffic by store fronts.   
 
Variations for setback regulations may be granted by the Planning Commission for projects in a 
designated growth area that meet new urban/neo-traditional planning principles, and further the 
objectives and goals set forth in the comprehensive plan. Appeals received within thirty (30) 
days will be forwarded to the Board of Supervisors for a final determination.  
 
This dual topic was first brought to the Planning Commission during the October work session 
(See Attachment C for detailed public notice announcements). After staff development, the 
Commission discussed the topic again at the January work session.  
 
Planning Commission:  
 
The Planning Commission held a public meeting on March 23, 2011 to consider ZTA 11:01, the 
proposed amendments to the Fluvanna County subdivision ordinance and zoning ordinance with 
respect to sidewalks, sidewalk waivers, and setback waivers. The commissioners approved the 
ZTA by a vote of 6-0 with little discussion and zero public comment.  
 
Conclusion: 
 
When considering this application, the Board of Supervisors should consider how the proposed 
amendments would change commercial developments within the County; allowing them to 
connect to adjacent land uses, increase the aesthetics of the development, and increase foot 
traffic throughout the area. The Board should take into effect the vision the comprehensive plan 
outlines for commercial developments and the potential impacts that requiring sidewalks and 
allowing setback variations may have on businesses, traffic patterns, and the quality of life for 
citizens of Fluvanna County.   
 

4



Suggested Motion: 
 

Motion 1:  I move that the Board of Supervisors approve/deny the attached ordinance to 
amend portions of the Fluvanna County Subdivision Ordinance to require sidewalks in 
commercial and industrial areas but allow for a sidewalk variation (Sec. 19-8-8 Sidewalks; 
Sec. 19-8-8.1 Sidewalk Variation). 
 
 
Motion 2: Additionally, I move that the Board of Supervisors approve/deny of the attached 
ordinance to amend portions of the Fluvanna County Zoning Ordinance to require sidewalks 
in commercial and industrial areas but allow for a sidewalk variation, and to allow for a 
setback variation for commercial areas (Sec. 22-9-5 Setback regulations; 22-9-10 Sidewalks; 
Sec. 22-10-7 Setback regulations; Sec. 22-10-13 Sidewalks; Sec. 22-11-11 Sidewalks; Sec. 
22-12-11 Sidewalks; Sec. 22-23-6 Site plan content; Sec. 22-23-7 Additional Improvements 
and Standards for Major Site Plans). 
 

Attachments: 
 

A – Application 
B – VDOT Technical Review Letter 
C – Public Notice Announcements  
D – Ordinance Changes for Sidewalks 
E – Ordinance Changes for Setbacks 
F – Draft Changes to Subdivision & Zoning Ordinance 
 
Copy: 
Applicant/Representative: Fluvanna County  

5



6

Attachment A



7

Attachment B



 
Public Notice 

Fluvanna County 
Planning Commission 

Work Session 
 

The Fluvanna County Planning Commission will hold a work session on Wednesday, 
October 13th, 2010 to discuss the requirements of sidewalks in the B-1, B-C, I-1, and I-2 
zoning districts, to discuss a waiver process for setbacks in the B-1 and B-C zoning 
districts to allow for neo-traditional development, and to discuss the FY12-16 Capital 
Improvement Plan Review.  The work session is scheduled for 7:00 p.m. in the Former 
Board of Supervisors Room in the County Administration Building in Palmyra, Virginia. 
The public is invited to attend. 
 

Authorized by 
Fluvanna County 

Planning Commission 
 
         
TO: The Central Virginian/Fluvanna Review 
Advertise on the following dates: 7 Oct, 2010 
Authorized by:  Fluvanna County Planning Department 
Bill to:  Fluvanna County Planning Department 
  PO Box 540, Palmyra, VA, 22963 
Mary Weaver 
Senior Program Planning Assistant 
Fluvanna County, Virginia 22963 
Email mweaver@co.fluvanna.va.us 
(434) 591-1910 ext. 1061 FAX (434)591-1911 
 

8

Attachment C



 
Public Notice 

Fluvanna County 
Planning Commission 

Work Session 
 

The Fluvanna County Planning Commission will hold a work session on Wednesday, 
January 12, 2011 to discuss the Long Range Project Schedule for 2011, initiating a 
Zoning Text Amendment for requiring sidewalks and allowing for setback waivers in 
commercial zones, and lastly, a recap of the Rural Zoning Task Force findings.  The work 
session is scheduled for 7:00 p.m. in the Former Board of Supervisors Room in the 
County Administration Building in Palmyra, Virginia. The public is invited to attend. 
 

Authorized by 
Fluvanna County 

Planning Commission 
 
         
TO: The Central Virginian/Fluvanna Review 
Advertise on the following dates: 6 Jan, 2011 
Authorized by:  Fluvanna County Planning Department 
Bill to:  Fluvanna County Planning Department 
  PO Box 540, Palmyra, VA, 22963 
 
Matt Weaver 
Planner 
Fluvanna County, Virginia 22963 
Email mjweaver@co.fluvanna.va.us 
(434) 591-1910 FAX (434)591-1911 
 

9



 
 

Fluvanna County 
PO Box 540 

Palmyra, VA 22963 
www.co.fluvanna.va.us 

 
        January 19, 2011 

 
PRESS RELEASE    For Immediate Release 
       Contact:  Matt Weaver 591-1910 
 

Fluvanna County Planning Commission  
Considers Amendments to the Sidewalk Requirements of 

the Zoning & Subdivision Ordinances 
 
Why amend the sidewalk requirements?  The current Fluvanna County 
subdivision ordinance does not require sidewalks in commercial or industrial 
zoned areas. The lack of pedestrian walkways discourages persons from 
walking to and within commercial shopping centers and exacerbates the 
County’s dependence on the automobile. Amending the sidewalk ordinance will 
help improve the connectivity within commercial properties and ensure 
pedestrian access to and from adjacent residential areas, schools, 
commercial areas or open spaces. Updating the sidewalk requirements would 
further bring the subdivision ordinance into conformity with the goals of the 
comprehensive plan for increasing alternative transportation opportunities in 
Fluvanna County.   
 
 
 
 

10



What is the process for amending the sidewalk requirements?  The 
Planning Commission is considering the proposed amendments to the 
subdivision ordinance with respect to sidewalks. At the October 13, 2010 
Planning Commission work session, staff gave a brief overview of the 
proposed amendments, detailing reasoning behind the proposed amendments. 
The Planning Commission and staff discussed in detail sidewalk requirements 
for commercial districts and the role sidewalks will have on existing and 
future commercial development. Discussion continued during the January 
12th work session. 
 
 
What is the next step?  At the January 26th Planning Commission meeting, 
the Commission will consider a resolution to formally initiate a zoning text 
amendment to make the proposed amendments to the subdivision ordinance 
with respect to the sidewalk requirements. The Commission may also further 
discuss the proposed amendments briefly at this meeting.  Once the zoning 
text amendment process is formally initiated, it is anticipated that a public 
hearing will be scheduled by the Planning Commission for the March 23rd 
meeting at which any concerned citizen is invited to attend and speak on this 
proposed amendment.  The Board of Supervisors may conduct their public 
hearing at the April 20th meeting. 
 
If you have any questions or comments regarding these proposed 
amendments, please do not hesitate to contact Matt Weaver with the 
Fluvanna County Planning Department at 434-591-1910 or 
mjweaver@co.fluvanna.va.us. 
 

11



PUBLIC HEARING 
 
The Fluvanna County Planning Commission will conduct a public hearing pursuant to Virginia 
Code Sections 15.2-2204 on Wednesday, March 23rd, 2011 at 7:00 p.m., in the Circuit Court 
Room at the Fluvanna Courts Building in Palmyra, Virginia to consider the following items: 
 

SUP 11:01 – Verizon Wireless – A request for a special use permit to allow for a 125 foot 
wireless communications tower with respect to 114.71 acres of Tax Map 30, Section A, 
Parcel 104.  The property is zoned A-1 and is located 0.6 miles east of James Madison 
Highway (Route 15) at the intersection of Georges Mill Road (Route 663) and Courthouse 
Road (Route 601).  The property is located in the Columbia Election District and is within 
the Rural Residential Planning Area.  
 
SUP 11:02 – Otis and Pam Collier – A request for a special use permit to operate a small 
home industry with respect to 1.76 acres of Tax Map 12, Section 4, Parcel B1.  The applicant 
is proposing to operate a small business to include automobile refurbishment, small engine 
repair, and furniture repair.  The property is currently zoned A-1 and is located on Hollands 
Road (Route 630), approximately 0.65 miles east of Bybees Church Road (Route 613).  The 
property is located in the Columbia Election District and is within the Rural Residential 
Planning Area.  

 
ZTA 11:01 – Sidewalks & Setbacks – A request to amend portions of the Fluvanna County 
Subdivision Ordinance to require sidewalks in commercial and industrial areas but allow for 
a sidewalk variation (Sec. 19-8-8 Sidewalks; Sec. 19-8-8.1 Sidewalk Variation).  Amending 
this ordinance will help improve the connectivity within commercial properties and ensure 
pedestrian access to and from adjacent residential areas, schools, commercial areas or open 
spaces. Updating the sidewalk requirements will further bring the subdivision ordinance into 
conformity with the goals of the comprehensive plan for increasing alternative transportation 
opportunities in Fluvanna County. 
 
A request to amend portions of the Fluvanna County Zoning Ordinance to require sidewalks 
in commercial and industrial areas and allow for a sidewalk variation (Sec. 22-9-10 
Sidewalks; Sec. 22-10-13 Sidewalks; Sec. 22-11-11 Sidewalks; Sec. 22-12-11 Sidewalks; Sec. 
22-23-6 Site plan content; Sec. 22-23-7 Additional Improvements and Standards for Major 
Site Plans).  Amending this ordinance will help improve the connectivity within commercial 
properties, ensure pedestrian access to and from adjacent residential areas, schools, 
commercial areas or open spaces. Updating the sidewalk language would further bring the 
zoning ordinance into conformity with the goals of the comprehensive plan for increasing 
alternative transportation opportunities in Fluvanna County. 
 
A request to amend portions of the Fluvanna County Zoning Ordinance to establish a setback 
variation for commercial areas (Sec. 22-9-5 Setback regulations; Sec. 22-10-7 Setback 
regulations; Sec. 22-23-6 Site plan content).  Amending this ordinance will allow buildings 
to be located along the road with a reduced setback. The community design section of the 
Fluvanna County comprehensive plan states, “In order to create a more functional and 
appealing pedestrian environment, parking should be less dominant from the street. This 
means parking should be relegated to the back or sides of buildings, or within structures. In 
addition, this approach makes for more attractive development.” 

12



Copies of the complete text of the above ordinances and associated plans are available for public 
review at the Office of the Fluvanna County Administrator during normal business hours. The 
public is invited to attend these hearings at which persons affected may appear and present their 
views. Questions or comments may be directed to Planning & Community Development 
Department, at (434) 591-1910. 
 
         
TO: The Fluvanna Review 
Advertise on the following dates: 10 & 17 March 2011 
Authorized by:  Fluvanna County Planning Department 
Bill to:  Fluvanna County Planning Department 
  PO Box 540, Palmyra, VA, 22963 

Pam Philipp 
Senior Program Support Assistant 
Fluvanna County, Virginia 22963 
Email pphilipp@co.fluvanna.va.us 
(434) 591-1910 ext. 1055 FAX (434)591-1911 

13



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT PORTIONS OF CHAPTER 19 OF 
THE FLUVANNA COUNTY CODE WITH RESPECT TO REQUIRE SIDEWALKS AND 

ALLOW FOR VARIATION IN COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL AREAS INCLUDING 
SECTIONS 19-8-8 & 19-8-8.1. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, pursuant 

to Virginia Code Sections 15.2-2285, that the Fluvanna County Code be, and it is hereby, amended as 
follows: 

 
 
Sec. 19-8-8.   Sidewalks 
 
For all major subdivisions within all zoning districts, sidewalks shall be provided along both sides of 
all proposed public roads and private roads with a sidewalk compliant with current VDOT standards.  
 
Sidewalks shall also provide connections to active or passive open space, schools, or to adjacent 
commercial and residential developments.  
 
Sec. 19-8-8.1.  Sidewalk Variation 
 
A variation to the sidewalk regulations may be granted by the Planning Commission for projects 
where: 

a) The Virginia Department of Transportation prohibits the construction of sidewalks; 
b) The physical conditions on the lot or adjoining lots, including but not limited to, existing 

structure and parking areas, existing utility easements, environmental features, or the size and 
shape of the lot, make it impossible or unfeasible to provide the required sidewalks;  

c) The application of the before mentioned requirements would not further the goals of the 
Comprehensive Plan or otherwise serve the greater public’s health, safety, and welfare.  

 
The applicant shall file a written request with the Department of Planning and Community 
Development stating why application of a sidewalk variation is necessary and how the before 
mentioned circumstances may apply to the property.  
 
The Planning Commission shall act on the variation request in conjunction with the county’s action on 
the site plan, subdivision plat or special use permit or, if no such action is required, within sixty (60) 
days of the date the application was submitted and determined to be complete. The Planning 
Commission may grant the variation if it determines that one or more applicable circumstances exist. 
In granting a variation, the Planning Commission may impose conditions deemed necessary to protect 
the public health, safety, or welfare.  
 
The denial of a variation, or the approval of a variation with conditions objectionable to the applicant, 
may be appealed to the Board of Supervisors. In considering a variation on appeal, the Board of 
Supervisors may grant or deny the variation based upon its determination of whether one or more 
applicable circumstances exist, amend any condition imposed by the Planning Commission, or impose 
any conditions deemed necessary to protect the public health, safety, or welfare. 
 

14

Attachment D



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT PORTIONS OF CHAPTER 22 OF 
THE FLUVANNA COUNTY CODE WITH RESPECT TO REQUIRE SIDEWALKS AND 

ALLOW FOR VARIATION IN COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL AREAS AND TO 
ALLOW FOR SETBACK VARIATION IN COMMERCIAL AREAS INCLUDING SECTIONS 

22-9-5, 22-9-10, 22-10-7 , 22-10-13, 22-11-11, 22-12-11, 22-23-6, 22-23-7. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, pursuant 
to Virginia Code Sections 15.2-2285, that the Fluvanna County Code be, and it is hereby, amended as 

follows: 
 
 

Article 9. Business, General, District B-1 
 
Sec. 22-9-5. Setback regulations.  
 
(a)  Buildings shall be located not less than fifty (50) feet from any public right-of-way. This shall be 

known as the "setback line." All parking lots shall be located not less than twenty-five (25) feet 
from any public right-of-way.  

 
 

(b)  A variation to the setback regulations may be granted by the Planning Commission for projects in 
a designated growth area that meet new urban/neo-traditional planning principles, and further the 
objectives and goals set forth in the comprehensive plan. Appeals must be received in writing 
within 30 days of the variation decision, and will then be forwarded to the Board of Supervisors for 
a final determination. 

 

Sec. 22-9-10. Sidewalks.  
 
Sidewalks that comply with the most recent VDOT specifications shall be required on both sides of all 
roadways, public and private. 

 
Article 10. Business, Convenience, District B-C 

 
Sec. 22-10-7. Setback regulations.  
 
(a)  Buildings shall be located not less than fifty (50) feet from any public right-of-way. This shall be 

known as the "setback line." All parking lots shall be located not less than twenty-five (25) feet 
from any public right-of-way.  

 
 

(b)  A variation to the setback regulations may be granted by the Planning Commission for projects in 
a designated growth area that meet new urban/neo-traditional planning principles, and further the 
objectives and goals set forth in the comprehensive plan. Appeals must be received in writing 
within 30 days of the variation decision, and will then be forwarded to the Board of Supervisors for 
a final determination. 

 
Sec. 22-10-13. Sidewalks.  
 
Sidewalks that comply with the most recent VDOT specifications shall be required on both sides of all 
roadways, public and private. 

 
 

15

Attachment E



 
Article 11. Industrial, Limited, District I-1 

 
Sec. 22-11-11. Sidewalks.  
 
Sidewalks that comply with the most recent VDOT specifications shall be required on both sides of all 
roadways, public and private.  

Exceptions approved by the Planning Commission for locating sidewalks along road frontage may be 
acceptable with the placement of a trail network or greenway on the property providing sufficient 
pedestrian circulation.  
 

Article 12. Industrial, General, District I-2 
 
Sec. 22-12-11. Sidewalks.  
 
Sidewalks that comply with the most recent VDOT specifications shall be required on both sides of all 
roadways, public and private.  

Exceptions approved by the Planning Commission for locating sidewalks along road frontage may be 
acceptable with the placement of a trail network or greenway on the property providing sufficient 
pedestrian circulation.  
 

Article 23. Site Development Plans 
 
Sec. 22-23-6. Site plan content.  
 
Z.  To the greatest extent possible, parking areas shall not be located between the adjacent public right-

of-way and the principal structure on the site unless topographic features or vegetation provide 
effective screening.  

1.   In the B-1 and B-C zoning districts, a variation to the setback regulations may be granted by the 
Planning Commission for projects in a community planning area that meet new urban/neo-
traditional planning principles, and further the objectives and goals set forth in the 
comprehensive plan.  

  
Primary considerations for such requests include:   
 
o location of proposed development 
o size, scale, character, orientation of proposed development 
o adequacy of ROW for future transportation system (evaluate with input from VDOT) 
o appropriateness of the proposed setback with surrounding development (proposed and/or 

existing) 
o compatibility with the goals and objectives of the comprehensive plan (applicant should 

enumerate as many as possible)  
o compatibility with new urban/neo-traditional principles  

(applicant should enumerate as many as possible) 
 

16



BB. In the B-1, B-C, I-1, and I-2 zoning districts, sidewalks that comply with the most recent VDOT 
specifications shall be required on both sides of all roadways, public and private. 

 
A variation to the sidewalk regulations may be granted by the Planning Commission for projects 
where: 
a) The Virginia Department of Transportation prohibits the construction of sidewalks; 
b) The physical conditions on the lot or adjoining lots, including but not limited to, existing 

structure and parking areas, existing utility easements, environmental features, or the size and 
shape of the lot, make it impossible or unfeasible to provide the required sidewalks;  

c) The application of the before mentioned requirements would not further the goals of the 
Comprehensive Plan or otherwise serve the greater public’s health, safety, and welfare.  

 
The applicant shall file a written request with the Department of Planning and Community 
Development stating why application of a sidewalk variation is necessary and how the before 
mentioned circumstances may apply to the property.  
 
The Planning Commission shall act on the variation request in conjunction with the county’s action 
on the site plan, subdivision plat or special use permit or, if no such action is required, within sixty 
(60) days of the date the application was submitted and determined to be complete. The Planning 
Commission may grant the variation if he determines that one or more applicable circumstances 
exist. In granting a variation, the Planning Commission may impose conditions deemed necessary 
to protect the public health, safety, or welfare. 
 
The denial of a variation, or the approval of a variation with conditions objectionable to the 
applicant, may be appealed to the Board of Supervisors. In considering a variation on appeal, the 
Board of Supervisors may grant or deny the variation based upon its determination of whether one 
or more applicable circumstances exist, amend any condition imposed by the Planning 
Commission, or impose any conditions deemed necessary to protect the public health, safety, or 
welfare. 

 
Sec. 22-23-7. Additional Improvements and Standards for Major Site Plans.  
 
D.  Safe and convenient pedestrian and bicycle access to, from, and within the site shall be provided.  

1.   In the B-1, B-C, I-1, and I-2 zoning districts, sidewalks that comply with the most recent 
VDOT specifications shall be required on both sides of all roadways, public and private. A 
variation to the sidewalk regulation may be granted per Section 22-23-6(BB).  

  

17



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT PORTIONS OF CHAPTER 19 AND 
CHAPTER 22 OF THE FLUVANNA COUNTY CODE WITH RESPECT TO REQUIRE 

SIDEWALKS AND ALLOW FOR VARIATION IN COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL 
AREAS INCLUDING SECTIONS 19-8-8, 19-8-8.1, 22-9-10, 22-10-13, 22-11-11, 22-12-11, 22-23-

6, 22-23-7. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, pursuant 
to Virginia Code Sections 15.2-2285, that the Fluvanna County Code be, and it is hereby, amended as 

follows: 
 
 
Sec. 19-8-8.   Sidewalks 
 
For all major subdivisions within the R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, & R-10, B-1, BC, PUD, I-1 and I-2 all 
zoning districts, sidewalks shall be provided along both sides of all proposed public roads and private 
roads with a sidewalk pavement or asphalt width compliant with current VDOT standards with a 
sidewalk pavement or asphalt width of not less than four (4) feet in width.  
 
Sidewalks shall also provide connections to active or passive open space, schools, or to adjacent 
commercial and residential developments.  
 
Sec. 19-8-8.1.  Sidewalk Variation 
 
A variation to the sidewalk regulations may be granted by the Planning Commission for projects 
where: 

a) The Virginia Department of Transportation prohibits the construction of sidewalks; 
b) The physical conditions on the lot or adjoining lots, including but not limited to, existing 

structure and parking areas, existing utility easements, environmental features, or the size and 
shape of the lot, make it impossible or unfeasible to provide the required sidewalks;  

c) The application of the before mentioned requirements would not further the goals of the 
Comprehensive Plan or otherwise serve the greater public’s health, safety, and welfare.  

 
The applicant shall file a written request with the Department of Planning and Community 
Development stating why application of a sidewalk variation is necessary and how the before 
mentioned circumstances may apply to the property.  
 
The Planning Commission shall act on the variation request in conjunction with the county’s action on 
the site plan, subdivision plat or special use permit or, if no such action is required, within sixty (60) 
days of the date the application was submitted and determined to be complete. The Planning 
Commission may grant the variation if it determines that one or more applicable circumstances exist. 
In granting a variation, the Planning Commission may impose conditions deemed necessary to protect 
the public health, safety, or welfare.  
 
The denial of a variation, or the approval of a variation with conditions objectionable to the applicant, 
may be appealed to the Board of Supervisors. In considering a variation on appeal, the Board of 
Supervisors may grant or deny the variation based upon its determination of whether one or more 
applicable circumstances exist, amend any condition imposed by the Planning Commission, or impose 
any conditions deemed necessary to protect the public health, safety, or welfare. 

18

Attachment F



 
Article 9. Business, General, District B-1 

 
Sec. 22-9-3. Requirements for permitted uses.  
 
All buildings, structures and uses in the B-1 District shall be subject to the provisions of Article 23.  
 
Sec. 22-9-4. Area regulations.  
 
None, except for permitted uses utilizing individual sewerage disposal system. The required area for 
any such use shall be approved by the administrator who may consult with the health official.  
 
Sec. 22-9-5. Setback regulations.  
 
Buildings shall be located not less than fifty (50) feet from any street right-of-way. This shall be 
known as the "setback line." All parking lots shall be located not less than twenty-five (25) feet from 
any street right-of-way.  
 
Sec. 22-9-6. Yard regulations.  
 
The minimum yard requirements for permitted uses adjoining or adjacent to a residential or 
agricultural district shall be fifty (50) feet. All parking lots and accessory uses shall be located not less 
than twenty-five (25) feet from any residential or agricultural district.  
 
Sec. 22-9-7. Height regulations.  
 
Buildings may be erected up to forty-five (45) feet in height from grade, except that:  
 
(a)  A public or semi-public building such as a school, place of worship, library, hotel and general 

hospital may be erected to a height of sixty (60) feet from grade provided that required front, side 
and rear yard each shall be increased one (1) foot for each foot in height over forty-five (45) feet.  

 

(b)  Spires, belfries, cupolas, monuments, water towers, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennae 
and radio aerials sixty (60) foot limit. Parapet walls may be up to four (4) feet above the height of 
the building on which the walls rest.  

 
Sec. 22-9-8. Off street parking.  
 
Off-street parking shall conform with Article 26 of this chapter.  
 
Sec. 22-9-9. Sign regulations.  
 
Sign regulations shall conform to Article 15 of this chapter. 
 

Sec. 22-9-10. Sidewalks.  
 

Sidewalks that comply with the most recent VDOT specifications shall be required on both sides of all 
roadways, public and private. 

19



Article 10. Business, Convenience, District B-C 
 
Sec. 22-10-5. Requirements for permitted uses.  
 
All buildings, structures and uses in the BC District shall be subject to the provisions of Article 23.  
 
Sec. 22-10-6. Area regulations.  
 
None, except for permitted uses utilizing individual sewerage disposal system. The required area for 
any such use shall be approved by the administrator who may consult with the health official.  
 
Sec. 22-10-7. Setback regulations.  
 
a)  Buildings shall be located not less than fifty (50) feet from any street right-of-way. This shall be 

known as the "setback line." All parking lots shall be located not less than twenty-five (25) feet 
from any street right-of-way.  

 
b)  Setbacks from any street right of way for buildings and offstreet parking lots may be reduced to 

five feet with the issuance of a special use permit.  
 
Sec. 22-10-8. Yard regulations.  
 
The minimum yard requirements for permitted uses adjoining or adjacent to a residential or 
agricultural district shall be fifty (50) feet. All parking lots and accessory uses shall be located not less 
than twenty-five (25) feet from any residential or agricultural district.  
 
Sec. 22-10-9. Height regulations.  
 
Buildings may be erected up to thirty-five (35) feet in height from grade, except that:  
 
(a)  Any building otherwise permitted may be erected to a height of forty-five (45) feet from grade and 

a public or semi-public building such as a school, place of worship, or library may be erected to a 
height of sixty (60) feet from grade; provided, in any such case, that required setback and side and 
rear yards each shall be increased one (1) foot for each foot in height over thirty-five (35) feet.  

 
(b)  Spires, belfries, cupolas, monuments, water towers, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas, 

and radio aerials are exempt. Parapet walls may be up to four (4) feet above the height of the 
building on which the walls rest.  

 
Sec. 22-10-10. Off street parking.  
 
Off-street parking shall conform with Article 26 of this chapter.  
 

20



Sec. 22-10-11. Sign regulations.  
 
Sign regulations shall conform to Article 15 of this chapter.  
 
Sec. 22-10-12. Special provisions for accessory uses and structures.  
 
Uses and structures which are customarily accessory and clearly incidental shall be permitted, provided 
establishment of the same shall not be permitted until construction has commenced on the principal 
building or the principal use has been established. 
 
Sec. 22-10-13. Sidewalks.  
 
Sidewalks that comply with the most recent VDOT specifications shall be required on both sides of all 
roadways, public and private. 

 
 

21



 
Article 11. Industrial, Limited, District I-1 

 
Sec. 22-11-3. Requirements for permitted uses.  
 
(a)  Before a zoning permit shall be issued or construction commenced on any permitted use in this 

district, or a permit issued for a new use, the applicant for the proposed use shall comply with the 
provisions of Article 23 of this chapter.  

 
(b)  Screening from adjacent business, residential and agricultural district shall be required.  
 
(c)  Landscaping may be required within any established or required front setback area. The plans and 

execution must take into consideration traffic hazards.  
 
Sec. 22-11-4. Area regulations.  
 
None, except for permitted uses utilizing individual sewerage disposal system. The required area for 
any such use shall be approved by the administrator who may consult with the health official.  
 
Sec. 22-11-5. Setback regulations.  
 
Buildings and accessory uses shall be located not less than one hundred (100) feet from any street 
right-of-way and all parking lots shall be located not less than fifty (50) feet from any street right-of-
way except that:  
 
(a)  Buildings and accessory uses may be located less than one hundred (100) feet, but not less than 

fifty (50) feet, from a street right-of-way, provided that said street:  
 

(i) is an access road within a subdivision for business or industrial uses and serves properties that 
contain industrial zoning district classifications only;  

 
(ii) is a cul-de-sac or an interior road; and  

 
(b)  All parking lots shall be located not less than twenty-five (25) feet from any street right-of-way.  

 
This shall be known as the "building setback line." (Ord. 12-19-07)  
 
Sec. 22-11-6. Yard regulations.  
 
When permitted uses adjoin agricultural, residential, or business districts the minimum yard 
requirements shall be fifty (50) feet. All parking lots shall be located not less than twenty-five (25) feet 
from any residential or agricultural district.  
 
Sec. 22-11-7. Height regulations.  
 
Buildings may be erected up to forty-five (45) feet in height from grade, except that:  
 
(a)  A public or semi-public building may be erected to a height of sixty (60) feet from grade provided 

that required front, side and rear yard each shall be increased one (1) foot for each foot in height 
over forty-five (45) feet.  

 

22



(b)  Spires, belfries, cupolas, monuments, water towers, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennae 
and radio aerials sixty (60) foot limit. Parapet walls may be up to four (4) feet above the height of 
the building on which the walls rest.  

 
Sec. 22-11-8. Coverage regulations.  
 
Impervious surface may cover up to eighty percent (80)% of the area of the lot.  
 
Sec. 22-11-9. Off-street parking.  
 
Off-street parking shall conform with Article 26 of this chapter.  
 
Sec. 22-11-10. Sign regulations.  
 
Sign regulations shall conform with Article 15 of this chapter. 
 
Sec. 22-11-11. Sidewalks.  
 
Sidewalks that comply with the most recent VDOT specifications shall be required on both sides of all 
roadways, public and private.  

Exceptions approved by the Planning Commission for locating sidewalks along road frontage may be 
acceptable with the placement of a trail network or greenway on the property providing sufficient 
pedestrian circulation. 

23



 
Article 12. Industrial, General, District I-2 

 
Sec. 22-12-3. Requirements for permitted uses.  
 
(a)  Before a zoning permit shall be issued or construction commenced on any permitted use in this 

district, or a permit issued for a new use, the applicant for the proposed use shall comply with the 
provisions of Article 23 of this chapter.  

 

(b)  Screening from adjacent business, residential and agricultural district shall be required.  
 

(c)  Landscaping may be required within any established or required front setback area. The plans and 
execution must take into consideration traffic hazards.  

 
Sec. 22-12-4. Area regulations.  
 
For permitted uses utilizing individual sewage disposal systems, the required area for any such use 
shall be approved by the health official. The administrator may require a greater area if considered 
necessary.  
 

Sec. 22-12-5. Setback regulations.  
 
Buildings shall be located not less than two hundred (200) feet from any street right-of-way. This shall 
be known as the "setback line."  
 
Sec. 22-12-6. Yard regulations.  
 
When permitted uses adjoin agricultural, residential, or business districts the minimum yard 
requirements shall be fifty (50) feet.  
 
Sec. 22-12-7. Height regulations.  
 
Buildings may be erected up to forty-five (45) feet in height from grade, except that:  
 

(a)  A public or semi-public building such as a school, place of worship, library, hotel and general 
hospital may be erected to a height of sixty (60) feet from grade provided that required front, side 
and rear yard each shall be increased one (1) foot for each foot in height over forty-five (45) feet.  

 

(b)  Spires, belfries, cupolas, monuments, water towers, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennae, 
and radio aerials are exempt. Parapet walls may be up to four (4) feet above the height of the 
building on which the walls rest.  

 

Sec. 22-12-8. Coverage regulations.  
 
Buildings or groups of buildings with their accessory buildings may cover up to sixty percent (60%) of 
the area of the lot. Additional coverage may be permitted by the governing body.  
 
Sec. 22-12-9. Off -street parking.  
 
Off-street parking shall conform with Article 17 of this chapter.  
 
Sec. 22-12-10. Sign regulations.  
 
Sign regulations shall conform with Article 15 of this chapter. 
 

24



Sec. 22-12-11. Sidewalks.  
 

Sidewalks that comply with the most recent VDOT specifications shall be required on both sides of all 
roadways, public and private.  

Exceptions approved by the Planning Commission for locating sidewalks along road frontage may be 
acceptable with the placement of a trail network or greenway on the property providing sufficient 
pedestrian circulation. 

25



 
Article 23. Site Development Plans 

 
Sec. 22-23-6. Site plan content.  
 
The site plan, or any portion thereof, involving engineering, urban planning, landscape architecture, 
architecture, or land surveying, shall be prepared by a qualified person. Final site plans submitted for 
approval shall be certified by an architect, landscape architect, engineer, or land surveyor licensed or 
certified to practice by the Commonwealth of Virginia within the limits of his respective license or 
certification. The minor or major site plan shall include:  
 
A.  The proposed title of the project and the name of the engineer, architect, landscape architect, 

surveyor, and developer, as applicable.  

B.  A signature panel for the Director of Planning to indicate approval.  

C.  North arrow, scale graphic, and date.  

D.  A vicinity map.  

E.  Existing zoning and zoning district boundaries on the property in the development and on 
immediately surrounding properties. All special zoning requirements attached directly to the site as 
a result of the issuance of any Special Use Permit, variance, or rezoning. Proposed changes in 
zoning, if any.  

F.  The boundaries of the property in the development, including bearings and distances.  

G.  All existing property lines, existing streets or rights-of-way opened or unopened; buildings, 
watercourses, and lakes; and other existing physical features in or adjoining the project. The 
physical features, such as watercourses, waterways and lakes on the adjoining properties need only 
be shown in approximate scale and proportion.  

H.  Features of particular historic, cultural, scientific, or scenic significance as identified in the 
Comprehensive Plan, by the Director of Planning, or by any County department or state agency 
having site plan review responsibilities, or by the Virginia Department of Historic Resources the 
Virginia Department of Conservation and Recreation, or the Virginia Outdoors Foundation 
including, but not limited to, historic features, archaeological features, and graveyards.  

I.  Building setback lines; the location of all proposed buildings and structures, accessory and main; 
number of stories and height; proposed general uses for each building; and the number, size, and 
type of dwelling units where applicable. Preliminary plans and elevations for main and accessory 
buildings.  

J.  Type, location, height, and materials of all existing and proposed fences and walls.  

K.  Site coverage, showing percentage of site in buildings, parking, and open space.  

L.  Existing and proposed topography and contour lines of the development site with a contour interval 
of two (2) feet or less for major site plans, five (5) feet or less for minor site plans, supplemented 
where necessary by spot elevations.  

M.  The location and size of sanitary and storm sewers, gas lines, water mains, culverts, and other 
underground structures; all overhead utilities and supporting poles in or affecting the development 
area, including existing and proposed facilities; and easements for these facilities.  

N.  The location, dimension, and character of construction of proposed streets, alleys, and driveways; 
and the location, type and dimensions of means of ingress and egress to the site. When proposed 
streets intersect with or adjoin existing streets, both edges of existing pavement surface or curb and 

26



gutter must be indicated for a minimum of one hundred fifty (150) feet or the length of connection, 
whichever is the greater distance.  

O.  The location of all existing and proposed off-street parking and parking bays, loading spaces, and 
pedestrian walkways, indicating types of surfacing, dimensions of stalls, width of aisles and a 
specific schedule showing the number of parking spaces. See Article 22-26 Off-street Parking and 
Loading Requirements of this Ordinance.  

P.  The location on the site of all living trees with a diameter of twelve (12) inches or greater at DBH 
(diameter at breast height) proposed to be removed. The site plan shall show heavily wooded areas 
to be preserved, trees to be retained, removed, and planted, and designated by symbols coincident 
with the areas of the trees. See Article 22-24 Landscaping and Tree Protection of this Ordinance.  

Q.  The location, height, and character of all outdoor lighting systems. See Article 22-25 Outdoor 
Light Control of this Ordinance.  

R.  The location, character, height, means of lighting, and orientation of proposed signs. See Article 
22-15 Signs of this Ordinance.  

S.  All paving, including, without limitation, gravel or other pervious surfaces, shall be of a design and 
quality to support the traffic which can reasonably be expected to be generated by the proposed 
use, as required by Article 22-26 Off-Street Parking and Loading.  

T.  Limit of one-hundred-year floodplain, as defined in Section 22-23-14(a)(5).  

U.  Location of any wetlands in compliance with applicable federal, state, and local definition of 
wetlands.  

V.  The location and dimensions of proposed recreation or open space, and required amenities and 
improvements, including details of disposition, in accordance with any open space or recreation 
plan adopted by the County.  

W.  Any necessary notes required by the Director of Planning to explain the purpose of specific items 
on the plan.  

X.  Cul-de-sacs may not be construed or employed as a parking area. Suitable easements for future 
public water and sewer facilities necessary to serve the property shall be indicated on the plan.  

Y.  All new electrical, telephone, cable television, fiber optic, and other utility lines on the site shall be 
installed underground.  

Z.  To the greatest extent possible, parking areas shall not be located between the adjacent public right-
of-way and the principal structure on the site unless topographic features or vegetation provide 
effective screening.  

AA.  Site planning shall consider the future development of adjacent parcels as recommended by the 
Fluvanna County Comprehensive Plan or other approved local plan and as may be indicated by 
any filed site plan, whether approved or under review. The site plan shall provide for safe and 
convenient vehicular and pedestrian circulation between sites to be occupied by complementary 
uses.  

BB. In the B-1, B-C, I-1, and I-2 zoning districts, sidewalks that comply with the most recent VDOT 
specifications shall be required on both sides of all roadways, public and private. 

 
A variation to the sidewalk regulations may be granted by the Planning Commission for projects 
where: 
a) The Virginia Department of Transportation prohibits the construction of sidewalks; 

27



b) The physical conditions on the lot or adjoining lots, including but not limited to, existing 
structure and parking areas, existing utility easements, environmental features, or the size and 
shape of the lot, make it impossible or unfeasible to provide the required sidewalks;  

c) The application of the before mentioned requirements would not further the goals of the 
Comprehensive Plan or otherwise serve the greater public’s health, safety, and welfare.  

 
The applicant shall file a written request with the Department of Planning and Community 
Development stating why application of a sidewalk variation is necessary and how the before 
mentioned circumstances may apply to the property.  
 
The Planning Commission shall act on the variation request in conjunction with the county’s 
action on the site plan, subdivision plat or special use permit or, if no such action is required, 
within sixty (60) days of the date the application was submitted and determined to be complete. The 
Planning Commission may grant the variation if he determines that one or more applicable 
circumstances exist. In granting a variation, the Planning Commission may impose conditions 
deemed necessary to protect the public health, safety, or welfare. 
 
The denial of a variation, or the approval of a variation with conditions objectionable to the 
applicant, may be appealed to the Board of Supervisors. In considering a variation on appeal, the 
Board of Supervisors may grant or deny the variation based upon its determination of whether one 
or more applicable circumstances exist, amend any condition imposed by the Planning 
Commission, or impose any conditions deemed necessary to protect the public health, safety, or 
welfare. 

 

28



Sec. 22-23-7. Additional Improvements and Standards for Major Site Plans.  
 
The following improvements and minimum standards, as applicable, shall be required and provided for 
in a major site plan:  
 
A.  All streets and highway construction standards and geometric design standards shall be in 

accordance with those specified by Fluvanna County and the Virginia Department of 
Transportation.  

B.  The pavement of vehicular travel lanes, driveways, or alleys designed to permit vehicular travel on 
the site and to and from adjacent property and parking areas.  

C.  All parking and other vehicular areas shall be so designed as to provide safe and convenient access 
by all vehicles which can reasonably be anticipated to use the site, including delivery and service 
vehicles as well as customer and employee vehicles.  

D.  Safe and convenient pedestrian and bicycle access to, from, and within the site shall be provided.  

1.   In the B-1, B-C, I-1, and I-2 zoning districts, sidewalks that comply with the most recent VDOT 
specifications shall be required on both sides of all roadways, public and private. A variation 
to the sidewalk regulation may be granted per Section 22-23-6(BB).  

E.  Widening or extension of the nearest abutting developed street shall be provided as required by 
Fluvanna County and the Virginia Department of Transportation. Where the proposed development 
does not abut a developed public street, a plan of access shall be submitted for approval in 
conjunction with the site plan.  

F.  Traffic control devices, signs, and pavement markings shall be required. Electric traffic control 
devices shall be provided by the developer where the anticipated traffic volumes from the proposed 
development exceed the thresholds established by the Virginia Department of Transportation.  

G.  All drainage structures and facilities shall be adequate to provide efficient and complete drainage 
of surface waters from the site into adequate channels. They shall comply with the standards and 
applicable provisions of the Virginia Erosion and Sedimentation Control Handbook, Drainage 
Manual of the Virginia Department of Transportation, and the regulations of the Virginia 
Department of Environmental Quality.  

H.  All public water supply and sewerage systems shall comply with the provisions hereof, with all 
applicable approvals of Fluvanna County and the Virginia Department of Health.  

I.  Provisions for the adequate disposition of surface water in accordance with design criteria and 
construction standards of the Fluvanna County, indicating location, sizes, types and grades of 
ditches, catch basins, and pipes; and connection to existing drainage systems.  

J.  Provisions and schedule for approval of adequate control of erosion and sedimentation, in 
accordance with the Fluvanna County Erosion and Sedimentation Control program.  

29



MOTION:   I move to approve the resolution proclaiming the month of April 2011 as Fair 

Housing Month in Fluvanna County in support of equal housing opportunity. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

****************************** 
For County Administrator’s Use Only 

 

Comments:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



 

  
 

President 

J. Lloyd Snook, III 

Vice President 

Nisha Botchwey 

Secretary 

Darla Overton Rose 

Treasurer 

Gordon J. Walker 

Charlottesville 

John J. Gaines 

Satyendra Singh Huja 

Mark Stanis 

James Hollins 

Caroline Wilkinson 

Joy Pugh 

Albemarle County 

Helen D. Flamini 

Karen V. Lilleleht 

Deb Anama 

Graham Paige 

William D. Tucker, III 

Greene County 

Ginny Barefoot 

Louisa County 

Grace Cooke 

Nelson County 

Ron H. Enders 

Beth Golden 

Charlottesville Housing  

Foundation 

Francis H. Fife 

David M. Oakland 

 

Thomas Jefferson 

Community Workforce 

Housing Fund  

Advisors 

Carol F. Clarke 

Francis Fife 

Jeff Gaffney 

Mark Giles 

Cheri A. Lewis 

Leigh B. Middleditch, Jr. 

David J. Toscano 

Gordon Walker 

 

 

 

 

1215 East Market St., Suite B  •  Charlottesville, VA 22902  •  (434)817-CHDO (2436)  •  Fax (434)817-0664 

Visit our website: www.piedmonthousingalliance.org 

Memorandum 

 

To: Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 

From: Karen Reifenberger, Director of Fair Housing, Piedmont Housing Alliance 

 Howard Evergreen, Fluvanna/Louisa Housing Foundation 

Date: 4/5/2011 

Re: Fair Housing Month Resolution 

April 2011 marks the 43
rd

 anniversary of the federal Fair Housing Act.  In recognition 

of Fair Housing Month, we present the attached resolution for consideration at the 

April meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors.  Adopting and 

promoting a resolution endorsing the concept of fair housing is one step recipients of 

federal funds can take to affirmatively further fair housing. 

 

Throughout the year, Piedmont Housing Alliance’s Regional Fair Housing Program 

promotes equal housing opportunity and combats housing discrimination. As the 

regional provider of fair housing education, outreach, and advocacy services, our goal 

is to raise awareness and promote compliance with federal and state fair housing laws 

that protect our community from discrimination based on race, color, national origin, 

religion, sex, family status, disability, and elderliness in the rental, sale and financing 

of housing.  

 

PHA’s fair housing services include advocating for victims of housing discrimination, 

responding to fair housing compliance questions, conducting fair housing education 

sessions, creating comprehensive educational materials and public awareness 

campaigns, and chairing the Regional Fair Housing Advisory Meetings.  In 2010, 

PHA conducted 22 education sessions for approximately 354 people and responded to 

68 calls for assistance.  

 

Thank you for your continued support of fair housing and equal housing opportunity.  

For more information about this resolution or PHA’s fair housing services, please 

contact Karen Reifenberger at 434-817-2436 ext. 106 or 

karenr@piedmonthousing.org. 

 

 

 



Fair Housing Month 2011 Resolution 
 

 

WHEREAS, April is Fair Housing Month and marks the 43
rd

 anniversary of the passage 

of the federal Fair Housing Act (Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended 

by the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988); 

 

WHEREAS, the Fair Housing Act provides that no person shall be subjected to 

discrimination because of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, or familial 

status in the rental, sale, financing or advertising of housing (and the Virginia Fair 

Housing Law also prohibits housing discrimination based on elderliness); 

 

WHEREAS, the Fair Housing Act supports equal housing opportunity throughout the 

United States; 

 

WHEREAS, Fair Housing creates healthy communities, and housing discrimination 

harms us all; 

 

WHEREAS, the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors supports equal housing 

opportunity and seeks to affirmatively further fair housing not only during Fair Housing 

Month in April, but throughout the year; 

 

Signed and sealed this 20
th

 day of April, 2011. 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

John Y. Gooch 

Chairman, Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 



 

 

 

 

MOTION: I move the resolution entitled “Adoption of FY2012-2016 Capital 

Improvements Plan” be adopted. 
 

 

AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  April 20
th

 2011 

 

 

SUBJECT: Fiscal Year’s 2012-2016 Capital Improvements Plan 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve resolution to adopt Fiscal Years 2012-2016 

Capital Improvements Plan as outlined in the attached documentation. 

 

TIMING: Immediate 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  This action will allow administration and staff to plan 

projects and resources accordingly. 

 

DISCUSSION:  None 

 

Staff: Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst 

 

Attachments:  Resolution “Adoption of FY2012-2016 Capital Improvements Plan” 

 

Copy:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



RESOLUTION  
Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 

April 20, 2011 
 

Adoption of FY 2012 – FY 2016 Capital Improvements Plan 
 

 At a regular monthly meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors held on 
Wednesday, April 20, 2011, in Palmyra, Virginia, the following action was taken: 
 
 

Present Vote 
John Gooch, Chairman  
Shaun Kenney, Vice-Chairman  
Mozell Booker  
Joe Chesser 
Chris Fairchild  
Donald W. Weaver  

 
 
 On a motion by ___________, seconded by _______________, and voted in the 
affirmative, the following resolution was adopted: 

 
 
 WHEREAS, it is the responsibility of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors to 
approve the County’s Capital Improvements Program; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Capital Improvements Plan recommends the initiation and completion of 
numerous capital projects based upon staff recommendations and citizen input; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors held a public hearing on the proposed Capital 
Improvements Plan on April 6, 2011; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has approved the FY2012 Capital Improvements 
Budget as part of the overall Fluvanna County Budget; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors that the FY 2012-
2016 Capital Improvements Plan hereby be approved. 
 
A True Copy Teste: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
John Gooch, Chairman 
Board of Supervisors 



******************************************** 
For County Administrator Use Only 
 
Comments: 
 
 
_______________________________  
County Administrator’s Signature 
 

MOTION: I move the resolution entitled “A Resolution to Adopt the FY-12 Operations Budget, 
Set the Tax Rates and Appropriate Funds” be adopted contingent upon approved 
Commonwealth funding.  Should funding from the Commonwealth not meet the estimated 
budget amount in a particular area, spending authorization in that area will be reduced. 
 
 
AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS April 20, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2012 Operations Budget and Tax Rates. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve resolution to set the tax rates with a revised real property tax 
rate of $0.____ per $100.00, a personal property tax rate of $______ per $100.00 and adopt the 
FY12 operations budget: 
 
 General Fund Operations   
 Capital Improvements Program  $5,888,000 
 Enterprise Funds  $2,418,729 

  TOTOAL:  $__________ 
 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: Adoption of the FY2012 operational budget and tax rates will establish 
authorization for receipt of revenues and disbursement of expenses. 
 
 
TIMING: Immediate. 
 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: This action will allow adequate time to prepare for the June 5th tax 
billing cycle. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Submitted by staff:  Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst 
 
Attachments:  “Resolution to Adopt the FY12 Operations Budget , Set the Tax Rate and 
Appropriate Funds”  



RESOLUTION 
A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE FY12 OPERATIONS BUDGET, 

SET THE TAX RATES AND APPROPRIATE FUNDS 
 
WHEREAS, it is the responsibility of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors to 
approve and control the County’s fiscal plan for FY12; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has received numerous staff reports; received 
comments from residents at a duly advertised public hearing on April 6, 2011; and has 
reviewed each request for funding; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Fluvanna County Board of 
Supervisors this 20th day of April 2011, that the Fluvanna County budget totaling 
$______________ is adopted and the tax rates for FY12 or July 1st 2011– June 30th 2012 
set as given below: 
    2011 COUNTY TAX RATES 
 
  Real Estate   $0.___ /$100 of assessed value 
  Public Service Corps.  $0.___ /$100 of assessed value 
  Mobile Homes   $0.___ /$100 of assessed value 
  Personal Property  $4.15/$100 of assessed value 

  Machinery & Tools  $2.00/$100 of assessed value 

  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors does hereby budget and 
appropriate to the COUNTY OPERATING BUDGET the following revenues and 
expenditures; this appropriation includes $1,080,000 in the Debt Service Reserve 
category for future debt service on the new high school; this appropriation is also 
conditioned on the understanding that, with regard to the operating budget for the School 
system, revenues received from the Commonwealth will be expended prior to local 
dollars: 
 

GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 
  Local (not including contributions to the CIP)          $ 
  State                   24,962,429 
  Federal                    3,308,962 
  Use of High School Debt Reserve Savings     1,600,000  
       
   TOTAL          $ 
 
 
  GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES 
  General Government Administration   $  
  Judicial Administration        
  Public Safety          
  Public Works          
  Health and Welfare         
  Education         
  Parks and Recreation             
  Community Development       
  Non-Departmental        

Debt Service Reserve        
    TOTAL             $  



 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that for budgeting and accounting purposes the adopted 
budget reflects no capital improvements appropriation in fiscal year 2012. 
 
FINALLY BE IT RESOLVED that for budgeting and accounting purposes the adopted 
budget revenues and expenditures for the enterprise funds are set as follows: 
  
       Expenditure  Revenue 
  
 School Food Service    $1,734,994  $1,734,994 
         
 Fork Union Sanitary District             427,111       427,111     
 
 Utility*          256,624         38,400  
 
 TOTAL     $2,418,729  $2,166,729 
 
*Utility fund revenues are supplemented by transfers from the General Fund. 
 
Adopted this 20th day of April 2011 by the 
Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
John Gooch, Chairman 



MOTION: I move the Board of Supervisors adopt the amendment to the ordinance 
entitled "An Ordinance to Amend Section 15-2-3 of the County Code to Increase the 
Amount of the Annual License Fee for Motorcycles from $6 to $18 and for Other Motor 
Vehicles from $20 to $33. 
 
 
AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  April 20, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: Personal Property Administrative Fee Ordinance Amendment 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt the amended ordinance to increase the Personal 
Property Administrative fee as stated in the motion above. 
 
TIMING: Routine 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: The increased fees will take effect in Tax Year 2011 and 
Fiscal Year 2012.   
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: None 
 
DISCUSSION: The fee increase was discussed as part of the Budget Planning  
process and is built into the FY12 Proposed  Revenue Budget. 
 
Staff: Crystal Besecker 
 
Copy: Linda H. Lenherr, Treasurer 
 
Attachments: Public Hearing Ordinance Announcement 
 
 
For County Administrator’s Use Only: 
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
County Administrator’s Signature 



 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 15-2-3 OF THE COUNTY CODE TO 

INCREASE THE AMOUNT OF THE ANNUAL LICENSE FEE FOR MOTORCYCLES 
FROM $6 TO $18 AND FOR OTHER MOTOR VEHICLES FROM $20 TO $33  

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE FLUVANNA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  that the County 

Code be, and it is hereby, amended, in Chapter 15, Section 15-2-3 as follows: 
 
 Sec. 15-2-3.  Amount of fee; when fee due and payable; collection; exemptions. 
 

The license fee on every motorcycle shall be six eighteen dollars per year, and on every other 
type of motor vehicle shall be twenty thirty-three dollars per year, payable to the treasurer of this 
county.  Such license fee shall be due and payable on June 5 in each year.  If any license fee owed 
pursuant to this article is not paid on or before its due date, then the treasurer may add the cost of 
any fee incurred by the county pursuant to Virginia Code Sec. 46.2-752(J) to the license fee due and 
owing to the county.   The treasurer shall, after the due date of any license fee required by this 
section, collect such license fee in accordance with the provisions of Virginia Code Sec. 58.1-3919 
and any other applicable law.  Additionally, the treasurer shall have the authority to take action as 
authorized by Virginia Code Sec. 46.2-752(J).  The foregoing notwithstanding, the licenses fee 
provided for by this chapter shall not be assessed on vehicles owned by active members of volunteer 
rescue squads and active members of volunteer fire companies located in the county (at one vehicle 
per such member); and for the following who served at least ten years in the county:  former 
members of volunteer rescue squads and former members of volunteer fire companies located in the 
county (at one vehicle per such former member). 
 


	Minutes 4-6-11
	RFC Invoice
	Four for Life Supplemental FY 2011
	Insurance Reimbursement for Sheriff's Department
	VDOT Secondary Six-Year Plan FY 2011/12 - 2016/17
	SUP 11:01 - Verizon Wireless 
	SUP 11:02 - Otis and Pam Collier
	ZTA 11:01 Sidewalks and Setbacks 
	Resolution/Fair Housing Month
	Resolution/Capital Improvements Plan
	Resolution/FY12 Operations Budget
	Personal Property Administrative Fee Ordinance Amendment



